
 
 

 

EXECUTIVE 
 
Date: Tuesday 4 June 2024 
Time:  5.30 pm 
Venue: Rennes Room, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business.  
 
If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Mark Devin, Democratic 
Services Manager on 01392 265477. 
 
Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the rear entrance, located at the back of the Customer 
Service Centre, Paris Street. 
 
Membership - 
Councillors Bialyk (Chair), Wright (Deputy Chair), Allcock, Asvachin, Foale, Vizard, Williams, R and 
Wood 
 
 

Agenda 
 

Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present 
  
1    Apologies 

 
 

 To receive apologies for absence from Committee members. 
 

 
 
2    Minutes 

 
 

 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 9 April 2024. 
 

(Pages 5 - 
16)  

3    Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 Councillors are reminded of the need to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests that relate to business on the agenda and which have not already been 
included in the register of interests, before any discussion takes place on the 
item. Unless the interest is sensitive, you must also disclose the nature of the 
interest. In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct, you must then leave 
the room and must not participate in any further discussion of the item.  
Councillors requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer 
prior to the day of the meeting. 
 

 

 
4    Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 - Exclusion of Press 

and Public 
 

 

 RECOMMENDED that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 

 



item 12 on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in paragraph 3 of Part I, Schedule 12A of the Act.  
  

5    Questions from the Public Under Standing order No. 19 
 

 

 To receive questions relating to items on the Agenda from members of the public 
and responses thereto. 
 
Details of questions should be notified to the Democratic Services Manager by 
10.00am at least three working days prior to the meeting. Further information 
about speaking at a committee can be found here: Speaking at a Committee 
 

 

 
6    Local Authority Housing Fund (LAHF) Round 3 Funding 

 
 

 To consider the report of the Director of City Development. 
 

(Pages 17 
- 56)  

7    Review of the Corporate Risk Register 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Director Finance. 
 

(Pages 57 
- 68)  

8    Members’ Allowances and Expenses Paid 2023/24 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Chief Executive. 
 

(Pages 69 
- 74)  

9    Exeter Port Authority: The role of the Duty Holder 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Director Net Zero Exeter & City Management. 
 

(Pages 75 
- 80)  

10    Parking Tariffs 2024 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Director Net Zero Exeter & City Management. 
 

(Pages 81 
- 116)  

11    King George V Playing Fields 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Director Finance. 
 

(Pages 
117 - 134) 

Part II: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public excluded 

No representations have been received in respect of the following items in accordance with the Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012.     
  
  
12    Land at Pendragon Road 

 
 

 To consider the report of the Director Finance. 
 

(Pages 
135 - 144) 

Date of Next Meeting 

https://exeter.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-and-meetings/public-speaking-at-meetings/request-to-speak-at-a-committee/


 
The next scheduled meeting of the Executive will be held on Tuesday 25 June 2024 at 5.30 pm in 
the Civic Centre. 
 
A statement of the executive decisions taken at this meeting will be produced and published 
on the Council website as soon as reasonably practicable. 
 
 
Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site http://www.exeter.gov.uk.  
This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you how you can ask a question 
at a Scrutiny Committee meeting.  Alternatively, contact the Democratic Services Officer 
(Committees) on (01392) 265115 for further information. 
 
Follow us: 
Twitter 
Facebook 
 
Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print on 
request to Democratic Services (Committees) on 01392 265275. 

http://www.twitter.com/ExeterCouncil
http://www.twitter.com/ExeterCouncil
http://www.facebook.com/ExeterCityCouncil


This page is intentionally left blank



EXECUTIVE 
 

 
Tuesday 9 April 2024 

 
Present: 
Councillor Bialyk (Chair) 
Councillors Wright, Denning, Foale, Parkhouse and Williams, R 

 
Also present: 
Councillor Moore (as an opposition group Leader); and 
Councillor M. Mitchell (as an opposition group Leader). 
 
Apologies: 
Councillors Pearce and Wood and Jobson (as an opposition group Leader) 
 
Also present: 
Chief Executive, Director Corporate Services, Director Net Zero Exeter & City 
Management, Director of City Development, Director of Culture, Leisure and Tourism, 
Director Finance, Service Lead Net Zero & Business, Service Lead - Environmental Health 
& Community Safety, Service Lead - Active & Healthy People, Assistant Service Lead – 
Local Plan and Democratic Services Manager. 

  
42   COUNCILLOR WOOD 

 
The Leader advised Councillor Wood was unable to be in attendance, following a 
recent operation and on behalf of the Executive Committee, wished him well for his 
recovery. 
  

43   MINUTES 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 5 March 2024, were taken as read, approved 
and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
  

44   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

No declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests were made. 
  

45   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER STANDING ORDER NO. 19 
 

No questions from members of the public were received. 
  

46   OVERVIEW OF GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2023/24 – QUARTER 3 
 

The Executive received the report which advised Members of the overall financial 
position of the General Fund Revenue Budgets for the 2023/24 financial year after 
nine months and the approval of additional expenditure required during the financial 
year. 
 
Particular reference was made to:- 
 
  a number of service projects were likely to run over into the next financial year, 

with a predicted service underspend of £2.9 million, and future supplementary 
budget requests would need to be made; and 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



  there were requests for three supplementary budgets, two of which were for 
reductions in the budget for areas to be carried forward into the next financial 
year and one for the depreciation budgets.  

 
Opposition group leaders spoke on the item and made the following points:- 

 
  Cllr Mitchell – enquired on the terminology of ‘income realignment’ in relation to 

parking and trade waste. 
  Cllr Moore – enquired on the risk related to the commercial income generation 

and what was being done to address the ongoing issue. 
 
During the debate, a Member advised that trade waste realignment referred to 
original income targets being unrealistic and had been amended to set a more 
realistic target to support the service. 
 
In response to questions raised, the Director Finance advised that:- 
 
  budget realignment involved the reduction of income budget for trade waste 

and car parks to reflect the Council’s current financial circumstances; 
  the capital programme was proving a challenge to deliver and had not currently 

required borrowing, with the Council using its own existing funds to finance it 
and therefore, no additional loans had been taken out; 

  commercial income initiatives would be considered over the next financial year 
as part of the budget process.  

 
The Leader moved, and Councillor Denning seconded, the recommendations which 
were voted upon and CARRIED unanimously. 
 
RECOMMENDED that Council notes and approves (where applicable): 
 
(1) the General Fund forecast financial position for the 2023 financial year; 
(2) the supplementary budgets as detailed in paragraph 8.12 and Appendix 3 of 

the report; 
(3) the outstanding Sundry Debt position as at December 2023; 
(4) the creditors payments performance; and 
(5) the One Exeter programme update. 

  
47   2023/24 GENERAL FUND CAPITAL MONITORING STATEMENT – QUARTER 3 

 
The Executive received the report on the current position of the Council’s revised 
annual capital programme, advising Members of the anticipated level of deferred 
expenditure into future years. The report also sought approval to amend the annual 
capital programme in order to reflect the reported variations. 
 
Particular reference was made to:- 
 
  full Council approved a general fund capital programme of £72 million, which as 

of December 2023, £3.45 million had been spent; 
  the total forecast spend for the financial year was £8.6 million; 
  the significant capital programme being carried forward into the new financial 

year, some of which had been approved in the February 2024 budget and the 
remainder would be presented to Members in July 2024; 

  the challenges in delivering capital receipts, with only £20,000 worth of general 
fund capital receipts generated in the financial year;  

  some schemes had been deferred, whilst other schemes including BLRF were 
no longer proceeding; and 

Page 6



  the further funding requests outlined in the report were being sought this year 
and would be carried forward for delivery in the new financial year.  

 
An opposition group leader spoke on the item and made the following points:- 
 
  Cllr Moore – enquired on the AV budget for equipment and whether it would be 

for improvements to meetings and broadcasting. 
 
During the debate, a Member enquired on the issues of delivering the capital 
strategy and sought clarification on the uncertainty of the projects in relation to 
timings. 
 
In response to questions raised, the Director Finance advised that:- 
 
  the AV programme should improve the technology used for delivering 

meetings; 
  some capital projects in the programme were uncertain by their very nature, 

and although there was a large budget for enhancements at the Guildhall 
Shopping Centre, it was not known when a lease would be ended or the budget 
required; and 

  there was an ongoing issue in recruiting and maintaining staff in engineering 
and corporate property services, which were vital in managing the capital 
programmes.  
 

The Leader moved, and Councillor Denning seconded, the recommendations which 
were voted upon and CARRIED unanimously. 
 
RECOMMENDED that Council approves:- 
 
(1) the overall financial position for the 2023/24 annual capital programme; and 
(2) the amendments and further funding requests to the Council’s annual capital 

programme for 2023/24. 
  

48   2023/24 HRA BUDGET MONITORING REPORT – QUARTER 3 
 

The Executive received the report on the financial position of the HRA Revenue and 
Capital Budgets for the 2023/24 financial year after nine months. The report also 
highlighted areas of risk, where certain budgets had been identified as being 
vulnerable to factors beyond the Council’s control and could result in potential 
deviations from budget, were subject to close monitoring by officers. 
 
Members noted that the HRA had remained broadly stable throughout the financial 
year, however particular reference was made to:- 

 
  the significant challenges to the repairs and maintenance budget, which had 

significantly overspent by £1.1 million and there had been a number of 
substantial voids reported; 

  the HRA had attracted more investment interest than was anticipated when the 
budgets were set;  

  the capital charges were about £350,000 lower than budgeted for; and 
  repairs and maintenance would need close monitoring for reasons that the 

more spent in the revenue account would provide less available funding for 
capital projects. 

 
Opposition group leaders spoke on the item and made the following points:- 
 

Page 7



  Cllr Mitchell – enquired on whether there was a strategy in place to recover the 
repairs and maintenance situation and what the timescales would be to balance 
it. 

  Cllr Moore – enquired if the Portfolio Holder could report on the HRA budget, 
following conversations held at the Council Housing Advisory Board on the non- 
expenditure of sundry land maintenance in relation to trees and in respect of  
property maintenance. She also enquired on what the final outcome of 
overspending would be with the likely increased demand for repairs. 

 
The Portfolio Holder for Council Housing Development and Support Services 
advised that budget issues were being addressed at the appropriate level. 
Additional contracts were in place to allow repairs which needed to be completed. 
Voids were also being looked at to ensure that people could move in quickly to 
regain the rent charges. The Council Housing and Development Advisory Board 
received reports on these matters and full engagement was made. She requested 
that detailed questions be emailed to her and a response would be provided. 
 
The Leader moved, and Councillor Denning seconded, the recommendations which 
were voted upon and CARRIED unanimously. 
 
RECOMMENDED that Council notes and approves (where applicable): 
 
(1) the HRA forecast financial position for 2023/24 financial year; and 
(2) the revision of the HRA Capital Programme to reflect the reported variations 

detailed in Appendix 4 of the report. 
  

49   THE HOUSEHOLD SUPPORT FUND – SCHEME 5 
 

The Executive received the report which sought Member agreement to delegate 
authority to the Director Finance in consultation with the Leader and the Portfolio 
Holder for Council Housing Development & Support Services to agree and disburse 
funding from the fifth Household Support Fund scheme. 
 
Members noted that the Chancellor of the Exchequer had announced a 6-month 
extension to the Household Support Fund, to run from 1 April 2024 to 30 September 
2024 and given the timing of the announcement, delegated power was being sought 
to agree the scheme and ensure the money could be used by the 30 September. 
 
Particular reference was made to:- 
 
  since the report was written, Devon County Council (DCC) had indicated that 

the Council’s allocation of funding may be £309,000, but the official grant 
agreement had not yet been received; 

  DCC were required to send their overall delivery plan to the Department for 
Work and Pensions by 10 May; and 

  support would be provided to a cross section of vulnerable households, 
including disabled people, care leavers and people with caring responsibilities.  

 
Opposition group leaders spoke on the item and made the following points:- 
 
  Cllr Mitchell – enquired on how the Council could ensure that those who need 

support could apply and can get hold of this funding and be directed toward the 
information. 

  Cllr Moore – welcomed the report but considered the government proposal to 
be late and too short a time period for support. She enquired if there was any 
data available from the previous funding schemes to inform on the level of 

Page 8



demand and if the Council had previously been able to fulfil all the requests 
made. 

 
During the discussion, the following points were made: 
 
  the funding was welcomed and would be put to good use; 
  was the funding similar to the previous household support fund schemes? 
  was the Council likely to receive a top up amount from DCC? and 
  the Council had records of those who had benefited from the schemes and 

enabled residents to be contacted and advised. 
 
The Leader requested that data on funding allocations made to date be made 
available to Councillors. 
 
The Leader moved, and Councillor Denning seconded, the recommendations which 
were voted upon and CARRIED unanimously. 
 
RECOMMENDED that Council grant delegated authority to the Director Finance in 
consultation with the Leader and the Portfolio Holder for Council Housing 
Development & Support Services to agree the scheme for disbursing funding from 
the fifth Household Support Fund. 
  

50   CLIMATE ADAPTATION STRATEGY FOR DEVON, CORNWALL AND ISLES OF 
SCILLY 

 
The Executive received the report which sought the Councils endorsement of the 
Climate Adaptation Strategy for Devon, Cornwall, and Isles of Scilly, which had 
been produced by the Devon, Cornwall, and Isles of Scilly Climate Impacts Group, 
who coordinate the regional action on climate application and to improve resilience 
across the region and was chaired by the Environment Agency. 
 
Particular reference was made to the strategy which included an action plan which 
would be reviewed again in five years and focussed on impacts relating to river and 
surface water flooding, rising sea levels, reduced water availability and temperature 
changes.  
 
Members noted that 64 impacts had been identified and evaluated across five 
sectors, with 18 being classified as severe, 28 major, 16 moderate, one minor and 
one negligible. The City Council would work with the actions in the strategy to 
support the work of the Net Zero team. 
 
Opposition group leaders spoke on the item and made the following points:- 
 
  Cllr Moore – welcomed the report and enquired about how the measures set 

out in the five-year strategy would be incorporated into the new local plan. 
  Cllr Mitchell – enquired on the statutory function of the board and how it related 

to planning implications. He also enquired on how the strategy fit in with the 
Councils 2030 Net Zero target in relation to the timescales of other authorities. 

 
The Portfolio Holder for Climate & Ecological Crisis welcomed the report, noting that 
the recommendations focused on the responsibilities of Devon County Council, 
covering the period until 2027, where it was hoped a further report would be made. 
She also welcomed the number of organisations and authorities involved who were 
addressing the importance of climate change.  
 

Page 9



The Leader requested that information on the statutory functions be provided to 
Councillors and would enquire on how it fit in with the new Local Plan under Minute 
No. 54. 
 
The Leader moved, and Councillor Denning seconded, the recommendations which 
were voted upon and CARRIED unanimously. 
 
RECOMMENDED that Council approve:- 
 
(1) the endorsement of the Climate Adaptation Strategy for Devon, Cornwall, and 

Isles of Scilly; and 
(2) to continue attending and participating in Devon, Cornwall, and Isles of Scilly 

Climate Impacts Group meetings, which coordinate regional action on climate 
adaptation, preparing communities and organisations for a changing climate, 
and improving resilience across the region. 

  
51   COUNCIL  HEALTH AND SAFETY AT WORK POLICY 

 
The Executive received the report on the Council’s Health and Safety at Work 
policy, which was a legal policy had been revised to reflect changes to the Council’s 
structure, legislation, and best practice. Members were advised that there were no 
major changes to this report other than administrative amendments as set out in 
section 8 of the report . 
 
The Leader moved, and Councillor Wright seconded, the recommendations which 
were voted upon and CARRIED unanimously. 
 
RECOMMENDED that Council adopts the Corporate Health and Safety Policy. 
  

52   MEMBERS’ TRAINING 
 

The Executive received the report which provided an update on the progress of 
work on the Members’ training programme and Members’ attendance and feedback 
for the various training sessions, which have been held since November 2023 to 
present. The report also provided a summary of the work undertaken by the 
Councillor Development Steering Group for 2023-24. 
 
Particular reference was made to:- 
 
  the training feedback received from Members showed that 59% were either 

very satisfied or satisfied with the training provided; 
  the average turnout for the last quarter was 44%, and more work would be 

done to ensure training sessions were accessible; and 
  the safeguarding and GDPR training on the SSS training platform was notably 

popular with Members.  
 
Opposition group leaders spoke on the item and made the following points:- 
 
  Cllr Moore – welcomed the figures and satisfaction levels.  
  Cllr Mitchell – noted that a planning training event was only open to six 

members and would therefore be 100% turnout. 
 
During the debate, Members made the following points:- 
 
  the SSS training platform was commended in its ability in providing various 

training options at a user’s leisure; 

Page 10



  GDPR and Safeguarding was recommended as priority training for all 
Councillors; and 

  one of the SSS training courses had been entered twice on the spreadsheet. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Corporate & Democratic Services and Environmental 
Health in commending the report, advised that he had sought responses from 
Members, of which 80% had been very positive. Work had been undertaken on the 
training provided for licencing and planning to be more interactive and varied and 
further work on timings and accessibility was being taken. 
 
The Leader moved, and Councillor Wright seconded, the recommendations which 
were voted upon and CARRIED unanimously. 
 
RESOLVED that the Executive Committee note the report. 
  

53   LIVEABLE EXETER PLACEMAKING CHARTER AND PRE-APPLICATION 
CHARGES 

 
The Executive received the report which set out the details of the six-week 
consultation on the proposals for the provision of charging for pre-application advice 
on major planning applications, and the introduction of the Liveable Exeter 
Placemaking Charter. 
 
Particular reference was made to:- 
 
  the Council currently provided a free pre-application advice service, and 

implementing a fee for advice would provide a more proactive service and 
encourage developments whilst being consistent with neighbouring authorities; 

  the report was seeking delegated authority to make minor editorial changes 
before publishing the charter on the council's website, and to also ensure it was 
updated regularly; 

  benchmarking work had been undertaken on charges with other authorities, as 
well as market testing with consultants prior to launching consultation; 

  the fee structure was divided into three bands, to reflect the complexity and 
need for specialist advice, and income would be reinvested to improve the 
quality of the service provided; and 

  the consultation was targeted to a specific group of likely users of the service 
and some criticism had been received  around the limited scope.  

 
Opposition group leaders spoke on the item and made the following points:- 
 
  Cllr Mitchell – enquired on the differences between developers with various 

numbers of homes and charging rates and whether there was flexibility to 
charge by the number of units being produced. He also enquired on which 
authorities had been benchmarked with and whether future review periods were 
needed. 

  Cllr Moore –enquired on whether there were any risks to other planning 
applications and decision making and how it would improve team capacity. She 
further enquired about formalising community engagement, enhancing decision 
making processes and whether councillors and public could see the review 
panel reports and what had been agreed. 

 
During the discussion, the following points were made: 
 

Page 11



  the report was welcomed, given there had previously been a public 
misunderstanding of pre-application advice, providing clarification on its 
purpose was beneficial; 

  would there be any issues relating to an application being refused by the 
Planning Committee, if a developer had paid for advice? 

  would the paid service create extra work for planning officers? and 
  how would the fees be re-invested to support the planning team and improve 

application processes? 
 
In response to questions raised, the Director of City Development advised that:- 
 
  the report set out a legal framework for charging for pre application fees, which 

would provide a quality of service, but was not a decision process; 
  advice provided from officers would be the same as that provided now but 

would provide a more project management approach. Government guidance 
encouraged the publication of planning performance agreements and Design 
Review Panel advice would be quoted in officer reports; 

  the service would be contained within the major projects team to support larger, 
complex applications and would not impact on the overall planning team 
dealing with householder applications; and 

  neighbouring authorities had been compared as part of the benchmarking 
process; and 

  the approach to a flat rate would be structured to reflect the services provided 
to an applicant. 

 
The Leader moved and Councillor Wright seconded an amendment to the 
recommendations to read as follows:- 
 
2.3 That the Executive recommends that Council grants delegated authority to the 
Director of City Development, in consultation with the Leader, to make minor 
editorial changes to the Liveable Exeter Placemaking Charter, attached at Appendix 
B, prior to its publication on the City Councils website. 
2.4 That the Executive recommends that Council grants delegated authority to the 
Director of City Development, in consultation with the Leader, to regularly monitor 
and review the Liveable Exeter Placemaking Charter, and make minor alterations to 
improve its clarity and detail. 
 
The Leader explained that the reason for the amended wording was because he 
was currently managing after the Planning Portfolio and wished to ensure 
consultation on delegated authority was made with the appropriate Member. 
 
The Leader moved, and Councillor Wright seconded, the recommendations which 
were voted upon and CARRIED as amended unanimously. 
 
RESOLVED that the Executive Committee note the Consultation Statement, which 
documents the responses to the consultation on the proposals for pre-application 
charges and the introduction of the Liveable Exeter Placemaking Charter, attached 
at Appendix A of the report. 
 
That Executive RECOMMEND that the officer recommendations to Council be 
amended as follows:- 
 
(1) approves the introduction of preapplication charges as set out in the report and 
endorses the Liveable Exeter Placemaking Charter attached at Appendix B of the 
report; 

Page 12



(2) grants delegated authority to the Director of City Development, in consultation 
with the Leader, to make minor editorial changes to the Liveable Exeter 
Placemaking Charter, attached at Appendix B, prior to its publication on the City 
Councils website; and 
(3) grants delegated authority to the Director of City Development, in consultation 
with the Leader, to regularly monitor and review the Liveable Exeter Placemaking 
Charter, and to make minor alterations to improve its clarity and detail. 
  

54   EXETER PLAN: FULL DRAFT CONSULTATION REPORTING 
 

The Executive received the report on the consultation held between September 
2023 and January 2024 on the full draft of the emerging Exeter Plan for the city and 
the evaluation of the consultation responses received. 
 
Members noted that this was the third major consultation undertaken on the draft 
plan and the first to include all the details of a full plan. Attention would now turn to 
the preparation of a final draft for a fourth consultation later this year before 
submission to the planning inspectorate for examination. Members were also 
advised that the Devon, Cornwall, and Isles of Scilly climate adaptation emergency 
strategy would be a part of the evidence base of the local plan. 
 
Particular reference was made to:- 
 
  the consultation used new methods of engagement, including coffee mornings, 

social media, and different venues; 
  a full audio version of the documentation had been made available online, to 

enhance engagement;  
  the consultation in numbers and responses were outlined in the report; 
  positive support was received for the approaches set out in the quick questions, 

particularly in relation to energy efficiency and renewable and to the Council’s 
brownfield approach. A firm level of support for development at higher density 
and height was identified in the appropriate context; 

  41 of the 61 topic-based policies had been well received;  
  the responses to development site proposals generally demonstrated support 

for brownfield sites; and 
  there was a slight reduction in the level of consultation responses compared to 

the previous consultations. 
 

Opposition group leaders spoke on the item and made the following points:- 
 
  Cllr Moore – thanked officers for the work undertaken but noted a number of 

issues requiring more discussion within the Council before the next draft. It was 
noted the local plan would go to one scrutiny committee and an ongoing series 
of monthly Planning Member Working Group meetings, but an agreed process 
for more Member inclusion was needed. 

  Cllr Mitchell – thanked the officers for the work undertaken and welcomed 
options for Member involvement, including a Members’ briefing or forum on the 
matter before a full Council debate. 

 
During the discussion, the following points were made: 
 
  officers were thanked for the work undertaken and the detailed report was 

commended; 
  Members needed to contribute to the consultations before a final version was 

received by full Council; 

Page 13



  it would be welcomed in future reports where any key changes or differences 
were; and 

  having residents respond and engage with the consultation had helped shape 
and develop the plan. 

 
The Leader agreed that Councillors had a role in the development of the local plan, 
but the current stage of the process was on listening to residents. Planning Member 
Working Groups would be holding informative sessions on the matter as it 
progressed, which were open to all Members. He agreed he would look at how 
Councillor engagement would be taken forward. 
 
The Leader moved, and Councillor Wright seconded, the recommendations which 
were voted upon and CARRIED unanimously. 
 
RESOLVED that the content of the ‘Exeter Plan: Full Draft Consultation Statement’ 
(Appendix A) be noted as the document to be used to inform the preparation of the 
final draft of the emerging Exeter Plan. 
  

55   WONFORD COMMUNITY WELLBEING HUB 
 

The Executive received the report which provided an update on the progress of the 
Wonford Community Wellbeing Hub prior to a formal planning application and 
shared the business case and £7 million costs of the project.  
 
Members were advised that there was a typo in the report, and that it was February 
2022 that Council had approved the provision of £750,000 funding to progress to 
the next stage of work and the business case. There had been a high level of 
responses from the community and what they valued, and the business case 
outlined how the Wellbeing Hub could generate profit within its first five years. 
 
Members received a presentation on the Wonford Community Wellbeing Hub 
(attached to the minutes), which included: 
 
  an overview of the purpose and desired outcomes of the hub; 
  the progress of work to date; 
  an overview of the existing fragmented buildings and the proposed new hub; 
  an overview of the designs of the hub; and 
  a forecast of the capital cost & revenue position and next steps of the project. 

 
Opposition group leaders spoke on the item and made the following points:- 
 
  Cllr Moore – enquired on the different options to governance arrangements and 

legal structures, how these might be resolved and who will be taking the project 
forward in regard to community involvement? She also enquired on what extent 
would capital be addressed to ensure community organisations do not struggle 
financially. 

  Cllr Mitchell – enquired on the capital funding for the project and what 
percentage of the capital requirements would be met through grant funding? 

 
During the discussion, the following points were made: 
 
  the Wonford area was one of the most deprived areas in city and deserved the 

new hub which was supported; and 
  the hub would provide both social and community value to residents and be a 

benefit to the community. 
 

Page 14



The Leader in commending the report advised that business case figures should be 
integrated in regard to income and that a report would eventually go back to 
Scrutiny for consideration on its progress and community engagement. 
 
The Leader moved, and Councillor Wright seconded, the recommendations which 
were voted upon and CARRIED unanimously 
 
RECOMMENDED that Council note:- 
 
(1) the report, extensive business case and community engagement; and 
(2) that officers will bring back a report with potential funding options for £7 million 
by April 2025. 
  

56   LIVE AND MOVE SPORT ENGLAND PLACE PARTNER 2025-2028 
 

The Executive received the report on the Live and Move Programme (Exeter and 
Cranbrook) as one of the original 12 Sport England Local Delivery Pilots, which 
launched in 2017 following a successful bid receiving over £7.5m of investment. 
 
The current funding would end on 31st March 2025 and the report sought approval 
to extend Exeter City Council’s role as a Sport England Place Partner and apply for 
further investment to develop the work of the Live and Move Programme for a 
further three years (2025-2028). 
 
Members received a presentation on the Live and Move Sport England Place 
Partner 2025-2028 (attached to the minutes), which included: 
 
  what the report was about; 
  the rationale and impact; and 
  the high-level programme structure 2025-2028 

 
Opposition group leaders spoke on the item and made the following points:- 
 
  Cllr Mitchell – enquired on the process of going to Sport England and what 

would happen if the bid were not successful at the current level? Would funding 
continue? 

  Cllr Moore – enquired on the Sport England framework outlined in 8.12 of the 
report and how various issues can be brought together and related to other 
strategies. She further enquired if groups would be involved with the Exeter 
Place Board in a governance capacity? 

 
In response to questions raised, the Director of Culture, Leisure and Tourism 
advised that the project was 100% funded by Sport England and there was no other 
funding available, so the Council was being proactive in applying for bid.  
 
The Leader moved, and Councillor Wright seconded, the recommendations which 
were voted upon and CARRIED unanimously 
 
RECOMMENDED that Council:- 
 
(1) authorise the Director of Culture, Leisure, and Tourism in consultation with the 

Portfolio Holder for Leisure Services and Physical Activity to develop a next 
stage bid and to apply to Sport England for funding; 

(2) recognise this next stage of work will focus on increasing physical activity, 
decreasing inactivity, reducing inequalities, and providing positive experiences 
for children and young people; and 

Page 15



(3) support the proposed next stage bid to Sport England based on the learning 
from the project to date and the principles outlined at 8.12 of the report. 

 
 
 

(The meeting commenced at 5.30 pm and closed at 7.24 pm) 
 
 

Chair 
 
 
The decisions indicated will normally come into force 5 working days after 
publication of the Statement of Decisions unless called in by a Scrutiny 
Committee.  Where the matter in question is urgent, the decision will come 
into force immediately.  Decisions regarding the policy framework or 
corporate objectives or otherwise outside the remit of the Executive will be 
considered by Council on 23 April 2024.

Page 16



REPORT TO EXECUTIVE 
Date of Meeting: 4 June 2024 

REPORT TO EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL 
Date of Meeting: 10 June 2024 

Report of: Director of City Development 

Title: Local Authority Housing Fund (LAHF) Round 3 Funding 

Is this a Key Decision?  

No 

Is this an Executive or Council Function? 

Council 

1. What is the report about? 

Local Authority Housing Fund (LAHF) Round 3 (R3) provides £450 million for a third 

round of funding with funding being used to deliver high-quality temporary 

accommodation for homeless families, and to provide housing for those on the Afghan 

Citizens Resettlement Scheme (ACRS). 

Initial allocations for LAHF R3 were made to 203 local authorities (LAs), using an 

allocations formula. These LAs can also be considered for additional allocations (from 

unclaimed funds) if they can deliver more homes. 

Local authorities that did not receive an initial allocation have been invited to notify 

DLUHC via an Expression of Interest (EOI) process if they too want to be considered for 

any unclaimed LAHF R3 funds to deliver the programme objectives. 

Exeter City Council has provisionally been identified as eligible for £594,000 capital grant 

funding to purchase a minimum of 4 homes as per the following indicative allocation 

(there may be further allocations subject to take up of this scheme nationally): 

Resettlement element: With this funding ECC is expected to provide a minimum of 2 

home (s) for the resettlement element. 

TA element: With this funding ECC is expected to provide a minimum of 1 home(s) for 

the TA element.  

Large resettlement element (4+ bed): With this funding ECC is expected to provide a 

minimum of 1 home for the large resettlement element. 

As with other affordable housing provision, there is an expectation that ECC part funds / 

finances some of the required capital. Government funding equates to 40% of total capital 

costs plus an additional £21,000 per property to account for other costs including 

refurbishment and conveyancing costs. The governments funding formula is based on the 

median property price in Exeter of £300,000. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



The local authority will receive an additional 10% uplift on the grant rate for every unit it 

will deliver via new supply. 

The following key changes have been made for LAHF R3: - 

• Removed the requirement for local authorities to match fund a specific 

percentage on each home, with full fungibility across the fund elements (TA & 

resettlement) – a local authority agrees to deliver a minimum number of TA homes 

and resettlement homes in exchange for their funding allocation, providing maximum 

flexibility and simplifying delivery. 

• Increased the programme time frame to a full two years - increasing scope for a 

wider range of delivery options, including new supply. 

• Introduced a 10% new supply uplift to support the growth of overall housing 

supply.  

• Providing revenue funding to local authorities to support programme delivery. 

Full details of the purpose of the funding, terms and reporting and monitoring 

arrangements are set out in the Memorandum of Understanding between the Department 

for Levelling up, Housing and Communities and Exeter City Council at Appendix 1. 

There are three options available: -  

Option 1 – Purchasing new build properties off the open market - To secure this capital 

grant funding, it is estimated that the council would need to contribute £630,400.  

Option 2 – Purchasing ex-ECC properties off the open market – In order to secure this 

capital grant funding, it is estimated the council would need to contribute £297,000. 

Option 3 – Do nothing - Turn down the opportunity to draw down on £594,000 in DLUHC 

grant funding to purchase additional properties. 

2. Recommendations:  

That Executive support and that Extraordinary Council agree Option 2 as follows: 

1) acceptance of the full allocation of £594,000 in DLUHC grant funding; 

2) the purchase of (four) properties off the open market; 

3) that the Council’s Capital contribution is funded through £297,000 of S106 funds; 

4) identification and purchase of suitable properties to let; 

5) that the rents be set at affordable rates in accordance with the provisions of the 

Memorandum of Understanding between DLUHC and Exeter City Council and the 

DLUHC recommended rental funding model Rent Standard – April 2023; 

6) that the MOU (Appendix 1) be signed and returned to DLUHC by the 12th of June 

2024 confirming the Council’s participation in the programme; 

7) that the Director of City Development and Housing and the relevant Portfolio Holder 

are given delegated authority to proceed with the acquisitions and to amend the 

number of properties purchased in line with the agreement above and including 

where additional government grant may become available (provided that no further 

capital contribution is required from Exeter City Council). 

Page 18



3. Reasons for the recommendation: 

Exeter City Council is committed to supporting refugees, where possible and within 

available resources, that have been displaced due to conflict and the Local Authority 

Housing Fund (LAHF) is an opportunity to bring on additional units of long-term family 

accommodation that will help address much needed accommodation for this cohort and 

to provide homes for future housing need.  

The Home Office have advised that at this juncture, they require over 100 properties of all 

sizes for the Afghan cohort. While 2 and 3 beds dominate the requirement there is a need 

for properties that are 4 – 7 beds in size.  

One of the properties will be used for temporary accommodation and will assist local 

citizens who are homeless. The Council currently has 34 families in Temporary 

Accommodation. 

Subject to council approval, once these properties have been secured, they will be an 

ECC asset. DLUHC envisages that once all Afghan households have been resettled the 

Council will be able to use the properties for other housing needs such as temporary 

accommodation which is always in high demand. 

4. What are the resource implications including non financial resources 

There are a number of resource implications to consider: - 

Sourcing appropriate properties –This will require cross departmental co-operation with 

Housing Needs Department sourcing appropriate properties from open market, Estates 

and Housing Assets visiting and inspecting properties, Legal Department carrying out 

conveyancing and then when purchased, Housing Assets inspecting and arranging for 

necessary works to be carried out to ensure that all properties meet the Decent Homes 

Standard. Costs have been factored into the budget to cover the cost of conveyancing 

and inspections and £90,000 will be set aside to carry out necessary repairs if purchasing 

Ex-ECC properties. 

Financing the council contribution  

Option 1 – Purchasing New Build 

The properties will be owned and managed by the Council and based on a stock profile of 

3 x Two Beds and 1 x Four Beds it is estimated that the total cost of purchasing 

properties off the open market will be £1,246,000. Alongside contributions of £594,000 

from DLUHC and a New Homes Bonus of £84,000 the Council will need to invest a total 

of £630,400.  

There is currently £643,500 in unreserved non-restricted S106 funds. This includes 

underspends from LAHF 1 which came in with an underspend of £63,000 and a £40,000 

underspend on LAHF 2.  

Option 2 – Purchasing ex-ECC properties off the open market 

The properties will be owned and managed by the Council and based on a stock profile of 

3 x Two Beds and 1 x Four Beds it is estimated that the total cost of purchasing 

Page 19



properties off the open market will be £891,000. Alongside contributions of £594,000 from 

DLUHC the council will need to contribute a total of £297,000 

There is currently £643,500 in unreserved non-restricted S106 funds. This includes 

underspends from LAHF 1 which came in with an underspend of £63,000 and a £40,000 

underspend on LAHF 2.  

Project-On Costs – Appendix 2 provides an overview of associated Project Costs – legal 

costs have been factored into the budget alongside Officer time from Assets. 

5. Section 151 Officer comments: 

Whilst there is an opportunity cost to using s106 resources, this is an opportunity to 

acquire four additional properties without adding to the Council’s borrowing requirement. 

This means that the rental income will add resources to the revenue account. The 

Finance team will work closely with Housing to ensure that the houses are placed in the 

most economically advantageous position, whilst ensuring that the Councils is acting in 

line with legislation and s106 obligations. 

6. What are the legal aspects? 

The funds are to be provided by central government to authorities in accordance with the 

provisions of section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003.  Section 31 addresses the 

power to pay grants to local authorities and states: 

A Minister of the Crown may pay a grant to a local authority in England towards 

expenditure incurred or to be incurred by it. 

This is a non-ring-fenced capital grant, although conditions can be attached as to the use 

of the grant. In this case, DLUHC requires the Council to enter into a Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU). Members should read and consider the MOU.  

Members will note that the terms of the MOU are not legally binding and state at 

paragraph 1 that ‘this MOU is not intended to create legal or binding obligations. It 

describes the understanding between both parties for the use of funding specified in 

Section 3 of this agreement’. 

The stated purpose of the scheme is for local authorities to acquire housing stock in order 

to ‘‘[r]educe local housing pressures and use of expensive and unsuitable 

accommodation, by providing better quality temporary accommodation to those owed 

homelessness duties by local authorities’, to ‘[r]educe temporary accommodation costs’ 

and to ‘[p]rovide sustainable settled housing to those on the ACRS [Afghan Citizens 

Resettlement scheme] so that they can build new lives in the UK, find employment and 

integrate into communities’. 

7. Monitoring Officer’s comments: 

The Deputy Monitoring Officer reminds members that they are under an obligation to 

exercise their fiduciary duty carefully. The meaning of fiduciary duty can be summarised 

as a duty to conduct administration in a business-like manner with reasonable care, skill 

and caution and with due regards to the council’s rate payers. When discharging their 

fiduciary duties councillors will need to consider the following: 

Page 20



a. Prudent use of the council’s resources, including the raising of income and the 

control of expenditure; 
b. Financial prudence both long and short term; 
c. Striking a fair balance between the interest of the council tax payers on the one hand 

and the community interest and adequate and efficient services on the other hand. 
 

Simon Copper – Deputy Monitoring Officer. 

8. Report details: 

All properties under LAHF 1 and LAHF 2 have now been purchased and 7 households 

have moved into their new homes, the remaining properties are going through a matching 

process to identify suitable households.  

Whilst locally all Bridging Hotels have been closed and households rehoused the Home 

Office have advised that at this juncture, they require over 100 properties of all sizes for 

the Afghan cohort. While 2 and 3 beds dominate the requirement there is a need for 

properties that are 4 – 7 beds in size.  

Purpose of funding and Next Steps 

The £450 million LAHF R3 helps deliver DLUHC’s commitment to assist those who are 

homeless to secure accommodation, alongside supporting the government’s 

humanitarian obligations to provide safe and suitable housing to those fleeing 

Afghanistan. 

The objectives of LAHF R3 are to: 

• Reduce local housing pressures and use of expensive and unsuitable 

accommodation, by providing better quality temporary accommodation to those owed 

homelessness duties by local authorities. 

• Reduce temporary accommodation costs. 

• Provide sustainable settled housing to those on ACRS so that they can build new 

lives in the UK, find employment, and integrate into communities. 

• Support local housing markets by assisting the delivery of new housing stock or new 

developments to grow overall housing supply. 

Property acquisition 

Within the framework of the purpose and objectives of the fund set out above, we want to 

provide local authorities with as much flexibility as possible to shape local delivery 

according to circumstances in each area. The guidance provided in this document is 

intended to support this. Local authorities will need to be satisfied that their specific plans 

are lawful and deliverable. 

Housing delivered as part of LAHF R3 could include, but is not limited to: 

• expanding existing local authority delivery programmes or those of local housing 

association partners; 

• increasing the number of affordable housing units in housebuilder-led schemes due 

to complete in 2024-25 or 2025-26; 

Page 21



• bringing empty / dilapidated properties (both residential and commercial units) back 

into use, including properties owned by a local authority or housing associations; 

• remodelling defunct specialist accommodation including sheltered accommodation; 

• ‘flipping’ forthcoming shared ownership completions into housing; 

• providing modular housing as part of wider efforts to use MMC to support local 

temporary accommodation pressures; 

• commissioning new supply that can be delivered in 2024-25 or 2025-26 from 

developers; 

• purchasing existing properties on the open market. 

Local authorities may choose the most appropriate delivery mechanism to achieve the 

fund’s objectives and to bring on stream the accommodation as quickly as possible.  

Officers are proposing the following options for Council to consider: - 

Option 1 – Purchasing New Build Properties 

The Council uses eligible Section 106 funds to purchase through open market 

acquisition. 

Based on a stock profile of 3 x Two Beds and 1 x Four Beds it is estimated that the total 

cost of purchasing properties off the open market would be £1,246,000. Alongside 

contributions of £594,000 from DLUHC and a New Homes Bonus of £84,000 the Council 

would need to invest a total of £630,400.  

The Council’s contribution will come from the use of Section 106 Funding towards the 

acquisition of affordable housing in Exeter.  

Rental Income Yield 

Rents would be set at Affordable Rent and capped at LHA + £100 per month and are 

based on median private rentals in Exeter 

Property 
Size 

Median 
Market 
Monthly 
Rent 

Affordable 
Rent @ 80% 
of Market 
Rent 

LHA Rate  Rent to be 
charged 

2 Bed £1,173 £938.40 £792.83 £892.83 

3 Bed £1,495 £1,196 £947.40 £947.40 

4 Bed £2,348 £1,878.40 £1,296.45 £1,296.45 

 

Assuming a 1% annual rent increase would see a total income of £3.15 million over a 50-

year period. With On costs for Contribution to Technical officer and Housing Officer, 

Planned Maintenance, Reactive Repairs and allowance for bad debt and voids factored in 

this would see a total outlay of £2.4 million over the same period. Concentrating on 

acquiring new build properties would see a reduction in long term planned maintenance 

costs. 

Page 22

https://www.home.co.uk/for_rent/exeter/current_rents?location=exeter


Total Income (Rents) £3,152,203.20 

Total Outlay (staff costs, bad debt 
and voids, planned maintenance & 
reactive repairs) 

£2,450,301.18 
 

Return to ECC over 50 years £701,902.01 

 

Pros 

• The government will be providing £594,000 investment to purchase additional family 

homes. 

• There will be a 10% New Homes Bonus for purchasing new build properties – this 

will be around £84,000 of additional grant funding. 

• With 35 families currently in Council temporary accommodation and over 1,000 

families on the housing register, in the medium to long-term the accommodation can 

be used to relieve Council and local housing need. 

• There are available properties on the market which will mean that we will be able to 

meet delivery within timescales. 

• Concentrating on purchasing new build properties will mean that the Council will be 

purchasing modern housing stock and that there are less upfront costs associated to 

refurbishment, removal of asbestos and the properties will meet current building 

regulations and have updated insulation – reducing long term planned maintenance 

costs. 

• Rent charges will be fully covered by HB claims and / or affordable top-ups for those 

households with income more than benefits thresholds  

Cons 

• There is currently £643,500 of eligible funding in the Section 106 account utilising this 

will effectively expend current s106 funds The Section 106 Account will increase over 

the coming year as committed receipts are paid to the Council. 

Option 2 – Purchasing ex-ECC Properties 

The Council uses eligible Section 106 funds to purchase through open market 

acquisition. 

Based on a stock profile of 3 x Two Beds and 1 x Four Beds it is estimated that the total 

cost of purchasing properties off the open market would be £891,000. Alongside 

contributions of £594,000 from DLUHC the Council would need to invest a total of 

£297,000.  

The Council’s contribution will come from the use of Section 106 Funding towards the 

acquisition of affordable housing in Exeter 

Rental Income Yield 

Rents would be set at Affordable Rent and capped at LHA + £100 per month and are 

based on median private rentals in Exeter 

Page 23

https://www.home.co.uk/for_rent/exeter/current_rents?location=exeter


Property 
Size 

Median 
Market 
Monthly 
Rent 

Affordable 
Rent @ 80% 
of Market 
Rent 

LHA Rate  Rent to be 
charged 

2 Bed £1,173 £938.40 £792.83 £892.83 

3 Bed £1,495 £1,196 £947.40 £947.40 

4 Bed £2,348 £1,878.40 £1,296.45 £1,296.45 

 

Assuming a 1% annual rent increase would see a total income of £3.15 million over a 50-

year period. With On costs for Contribution to Technical officer and Housing Officer, 

Planned Maintenance, Reactive Repairs and allowance for bad debt and voids factored in 

this would see a total outlay of £2.4 million over the same period. Concentrating on 

acquiring new build properties would see a reduction in long term planned maintenance 

costs. 

Total Income (Rents) £3,152,203.20 

Total Outlay (staff costs, bad debt 
and voids, planned maintenance & 
reactive repairs) 

£2,450,301.18 
 

Return to ECC over 50 years £701,902.01 

 

Pros 

• The government will be providing £594,000 investment to purchase additional family 

homes.  

• With over 1,000 families on the housing register, in the medium to long-term the 

accommodation can be used to relieve Council and local housing need. 

• One of the properties will be used as temporary accommodation and benefit Exeter 

Citizens who are homeless or at risk of homelessness. The council currently has 34 

families we currently have in temporary accommodation. 

• There are available properties on the market which will mean that we will be able to 

meet delivery within timescales. 

• Rent charges will be fully covered by HB claims and / or affordable top-ups for those 

households with income more than benefits thresholds  

Cons 

• Purchasing properties off the Open Market will come with its challenges and will 

require cross department co-operation. However, this should not be an issue as the 

Council has successfully purchased 27 ex- ECC properties off the open Market over 

the past 3 years.  

9. How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 

The service will contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan in the following areas: - 

• Building great neighbourhoods - By tackling social inequality through maximising 

homelessness preventions and reliefs and through maintaining and developing 

emergency, first and second stage housing options with suitable personalised 

support to address single and multiple need. 

Page 24



• Promoting active and healthy lifestyles - Supporting households to access key health 

and advocacy services in primary and secondary healthcare services including 

mental health assessment and support, physical and social care, and education, 

training, and employment opportunities. 

• Tackling congestion and accessibility - By extending access to homelessness & 

housing support services by extending our reach into the community through 

outreach and co-location and by developing multiple access points to advice and 

assistance 

10. What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 

Risks are: 

• Local housing market - not having the desired property available for acquisition. 

This is a minimal risk as the market has been assessed for the range of properties 

and there are sufficient numbers of 2 to 3+ bed houses available including new 

builds. The Developer who was used to deliver LAHF 1 and LAHF 2 on time has 

already confirmed that they are able to meet our needs under LAHF 3. 

 

• Officer capacity to progress the scheme. The risk is low to medium. The 

identification of properties would be undertaken by the Housing Needs Service with 

conveyancing and purchase via Legal and Estates who have been notified of the 

potential scheme and timescales. Subject to purchasing properties that can be 

inhabited without significant lead in for compliance and repairs an assessment of 

ongoing capacity for property management including cyclical maintenance will be 

undertaken. It is likely that there will be additional works needed to the properties to 

bring them to a decent homes’ standard, this will include asbestos removal, new 

kitchens, and bathrooms etc. These works will put additional pressures on Tenancy 

Services and Assets to oversee this work. 

 

• Public perception that the Council are acquiring properties for refuges when so 

many local people are in housing need. This can be mitigated by ensuring clear 

communications that the funding is targeted grant monies from central government 

and that there is no impact on the Council’s social housing development programme, 

and that long term the properties will be used for local citizens. One of the properties 

is to be used as temporary accommodation which will directly help local families who 

are homeless or at risk of homelessness in the city. 

11. Equality Act 2010 (The Act)  

Initially the properties acquired will be ring-fenced for the eligible cohort. Once there are 

no longer eligible households the properties will be free to be used as the Council 

determines best. This might be as temporary accommodation for homeless households or 

as long-term homes to relieve household need. 

12. Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:   

No direct carbon/environmental impacts arising from the recommendations. 

Page 25



13. Are there any other options? 

The Council is already facing significant financial pressures and there are other options 

where S106 funding could be used: - 

Council Own Build Programme 

Exeter City Council has given itself the target of building 500 new Council homes in the 

Housing Revenue Account by 2030. 72 homes have been completed, with a further 112 

on site at Vaughan Road and Hamlin Gardens. There are also a number of other sites 

that are being investigated and designed at present with the potential to deliver a further 

200+ new homes into the HRA. 

The HRA are in the unique position when developing on HRA land, rather than 

purchasing units, that consideration can be given to other more specialist forms of 

housing, including housing for older residents, Extra Care and for those with mobility 

issues or requiring fully wheelchair accessible properties. Where sites are suitable from a 

layout and geographic position these types of properties will be considered and designed 

into each scheme. Currently there is need for 31 fully wheelchair accessible wheelchair 

properties, as per the data from Devon Home Choice, this is a need across 1 bed to 4 

bed homes. Detail in the table below. 

Wheelchair Accessible Housing 

Need by Band and Bedroom  

01.04.2024 

 1 Bed 2 Bed 3 Bed 4 Bed Total 

Band A 1 1   2 

Band B 5 8 5 2 20 

Band C 5    5 

Band D 3 1   4 

Total 14 10 5 2 31 

 

New build schemes within the HRA are funded using a combination of funding sources, 

including borrowing, HRA capital, retained Right to Buy Receipts and S106 commuted 

sums. The funding for each scheme is built up of the most financially advantageous 

combination of the funding sources with the aim of reducing the borrowing required to the 

absolute minimum. The HRA are in detailed discussions with Homes England to add to 

these funding streams by bidding for grant monies under the Homes England Affordable 

Housing programme on future schemes. The use of this Homes England grant restricts 

the ability of the HRA to utilise RTB receipts on the same scheme. 

The HRA has used S106 commuted sums on a number of schemes in the past, most 

recently several million pounds of this S106 money was used on the recently completed 

Edwards Court Extra Care scheme. Whilst there are not large sums of S106 commuted 

sum available to use for affordable housing provision at the moment, not having this 

money available for new build schemes has the potential to make the viability of schemes 

more challenging and removes one of the ‘cocktail’ of available funding streams. 

Page 26



The viability of new build affordable housing schemes is a challenge for the HRA at this 

time. There is a combination of issues at play currently; tender prices are continuing to 

rise, with sub-contractors seemingly cherry picking the work that they want to do, and 

material prices have not returned to previous levels; interest rate rises are increasing the 

costs of borrowing and reducing the amount of borrowing that can be financed with the 

available rental income on schemes; less capital is available through the HRA, RTB 

receipts and S106 monies; and we don’t yet have a track record for bidding to Homes 

England for grant and the levels of grant being offered may not be keeping pace with 

tender rises. This combination of factors is making the funding of new build schemes for 

the HRA particularly challenging flexibility is required to arrive at the most advantageous 

combination of funding sources. 

LAINGS Properties 

This scheme consists of 18 non-traditional Laings Easi-Form properties (concrete panel 

construction, designed for speed of construction rather than longevity), which, for the 

most part form one half of a pair of semi-detached properties. The project is two thirds 

completed but has suffered from delays with the previous contractor, relating to Covid 

shutdown of their business, and the need for an alternative contractor to be brought in to 

finish some partially completed properties. There are still 6 properties to be completed. 

There is also the potential to purchase a further privately owned Laings property, which is 

the other half of one of the Council owned properties, so the purchase of this property 

would aid in the rebuilding of the Council owned property. 

The Laings project received a budget allocation at committee on 20 February 2018 for 

£3.25m, at that time this was thought to be adequate to develop all the properties. But the 

scheme has suffered a number of setbacks & changes since this original allocation; 

including the addition of another property; Lockdown contractor shutdowns and slow 

progress; issues with the original contractor resulting the Council bringing in a 

replacement contractor; significant changes in material and labour costs resulting in large 

cost uplifts. 

To date 12 of the 18 properties have been completed on this project, these properties are 

signed off and have tenants living in them. 

There are 6 properties that are still to be completed for this project, one remains un-

demolished, two are a self-contained pair of semi-detached houses, and the final three 

have been demolished and the remaining half of the semi is weather protected and 

propped with scaffolding. 

A budget totalling £2.5m is required to deliver the final phase of the Laings project. This 

budget also includes the purchase of one privately owned property. The purchase of this 

property is underway. 

S106 monies could be used towards the redevelopment of the Laings Project, although it 

would still require additional borrowing of £1.9 million to complete the scheme. It is likely 

to take 5 years before there is sufficient funds in the S106 budget to cover the complete 

cost of the re-build.  

Director City Development, Ian Collinson 

Page 27



Authors: Chris Stocks & Lawrence Blake 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 

Background papers used in compiling this report:- 

None 

 
 

Contact for enquires:  
Democratic Services (Committees) 
Room 4.36 
01392 265275 
 

Page 28



 

1 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

Between 
 

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities  
 

-and- 
 

LA Name 
 
1. Purpose 

 
1.1. This Memorandum of Understanding (‘MOU’) sets out the agreed working 

relationship between the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 

Communities (‘DLUHC’) and LA Name (‘the Council’) regarding the 

administration and delivery of the Local Authority Housing Fund – third 

funding round (‘LAHF R3’). 

 
1.2. This MOU will be for the period 2024/25-2025/26. It will be reviewed and 

updated only where either of the signatories deem it necessary, in which 

case it will require joint agreement. Further detail on changing the MOU is 

set out in Paragraph 5.5. 

 
1.3. This MOU is not intended to create legal or binding obligations. It 

describes the understanding between both parties for the use of funding 

specified in Section 3 of this agreement. 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1. LAHF R3 was launched in March 2024. The details of the fund were 

shared with the Council in the document ‘Local Authority Housing Fund - 

third funding round: Prospectus and Guidance’ (‘the Prospectus’).  

 
2.2. LAHF R3 is a £450m grant fund, with objectives to: 

 

• Reduce local housing pressures and use of expensive and 

unsuitable accommodation, by providing better quality temporary 

accommodation to those owed homelessness duties by local 

authorities. 

• Reduce temporary accommodation costs. 

• Provide sustainable settled housing to those on ACRS so that they 

can build new lives in the UK, find employment and integrate into 

communities. 

• Support local housing markets by assisting the delivery of new 

housing stock or new developments to grow overall housing supply. 

Page 29



 

2 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

 
3. Total delivery target and Total allocation 

  

3.1. DLUHC has accepted the Council’s plan to provide X homes (‘the total 

delivery target’) under LAHF R3, of which X homes shall be new homes 

(‘the new homes delivery target’), and DLUHC will provide a grant of £X 

(‘the total allocation’).  

 

3.2. The total allocation includes any New Homes uplift and the refurbishment 

allowance as calculated with reference to 6.3 of the Prospectus.  

 
3.3. For the purposes of the New Homes Uplift, a new home is a property that 

will be delivered in FYs 24/25 or 25/26 as a direct new development, an 

‘Off-the-shelf’ new build property purchased from developers, a property 

that has its use converted (delivering an extra residential unit), or a 

property that has its use changed (delivering an extra residential unit). 

 

 
3.4. The total allocation will be provided as £x in 2024-2025 (‘the Year 1 

allocation’) and £x in 2025-2026 (‘the Year 2 allocation’).  

 

 

3.5. The Council agrees the following targets to deliver at least: 

 

• X properties to be allocated to households that meet the TA 

element eligibility criteria outlined in section 5.1 of the Prospectus.  

 

• X properties for households that meet the R3 resettlement 

element eligibility criteria outlined in section 5.2 of the Prospectus. 

 

• X properties (4+ bed) for households that meet the R3 large 

resettlement element eligibility criteria outlined in section 5.2 of the 

Prospectus. 

 

3.6. DLUHC will also provide a in revenue grant to the Council for 2024-2025 

of £X. 

 

3.7. This MOU covers the funding commitments from DLUHC and the delivery, 

financial expenditure, agreed milestones, reporting and evaluation, and 

communications between the Parties. It also sets out the steps DLUHC 

could take in the event of underperformance if required.  

 
4. Purpose of the Funding 

 
4.1. LAHF R3 funding has been provided specifically for spending on LAHF R3 

priorities as specified at 2.2 to deliver properties for use by households 

that meet the LAHF R3 eligibility criteria, and the Council agrees to spend 

Page 30



 

3 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

LAHF R3 funding on activity set out in this MOU as agreed with DLUHC or 

subsequently agreed with DLUHC as per Paragraph 5.5. 

 
4.2. LAHF R3 funding is unlikely to meet all the Council’s acquisition/ delivery 

costs. The Council or its delivery partner(s) will fund any outstanding sum 

required.  

 
4.3. The Council will use its best endeavours to meet the delivery target and to 

achieve value for money. The Council should ensure it complies with the 

Code of Practice for Local Authority Accounting.  

 
4.4. The Council may determine how it uses the total allocation and the 

revenue funding as long as the delivery target and the new home delivery 

target are met. 

 

4.5. Revenue funding has been provided to the Council for any activities which 

support delivery of the total allocation, including but not limited to 

programme/ administration resource or professional services (e.g., fees, 

conveyancing). Revenue funding will be paid in full alongside the Tranche 

1 allocation. 

 

5. Delivery Profile   

 
5.1. Delivery of the fund will be measured on the basis of exchange of 

contracts, or equivalent milestone where exchange of contract will not 

occur, and the number of households accommodated in the properties. 

Any variations to this, and necessary changes to the MOU, will need to be 

agreed by the parties and an amendment to this MOU made.  

 
5.2. Funding outlined in Table 1 is provided to deliver the total delivery target. 

The Council agrees to make best endeavours to meet the total delivery 

target by 31 March 2026. 

 
5.3. The Council agrees to deliver X properties in financial year 2024-25 (‘the 

Year 1 delivery target’) and X properties in financial year 2025-26 (‘the 

Year 2 delivery target’). The property types that the Council agrees to 

delivery in each year is outlined in Table 1. 

 
Table 1 – delivery profile 

Property type Year 1 delivery 

target (2024-25) 

Year 2 delivery 

target (2025-26) 

Total delivery 

target 

TA element X X X 

R3 resettlement 

element 

X X X 

Page 31



 

4 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

R3 large 

resettlement 

element 

X X X 

All property 

types 

X X X 

 

5.4. This MOU is for the full term of the total allocation unless signatories agree 

to change as per Paragraph 5.5. A further Grant Determination Letter 

(GDL) will be provided following confirmation of each tranche payment. 

 
5.5. DLUHC and the Council both have the right to request a change to the 

MOU. With regards to changing the target number of units, the Council 

may ask for either a higher or lower target. Any proposed change will 

impact the amount of funding received (as set out in the Prospectus) 

unless the Council is seeking to deliver more units for the same amount of 

money. Requests will be considered based on the progress of the 

reallocations process as outlined in Section 11 of the Prospectus and 

confirmed in writing. 

 
6. Financial Arrangements  

 
6.1. The agreed funds will be issued to the Council as grant payments under 

section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003. The Council may pass on 

the funding to a third party (e.g. Registered Providers) as appropriate to 

deliver the delivery target, complying with the Subsidy Control Act 2022. 
 

6.2. The capital funding will be provided by DLUHC in four tranches. The 

‘Tranche 1 allocation’ is 30% of the Year 1 allocation. The ‘Tranche 2 

allocation’ is 70% of the Year 1 allocation. The ‘Tranche 3 allocation’ and 

the ‘Tranche 4 allocation’ are both 50% of the Year 2 allocation. All 

tranches are set out in Table 2. 

 
Table 2 – Capital funding allocation  

Tranche 1 
allocation 

Tranche 2 
allocation 

Tranche 3 
allocation 

Tranche 4 
allocation 

Total 
allocation 

Total funding   £X £X £X £X £X 

 

6.3. Table 2 sets out the timetable for payments to be made to the 

Council. The earliest payment date for the Tranche 1 allocation is in July 

2024. The Tranche 2 allocation will be paid once the Council has 

demonstrated that at least 60% of the Tranche 1 allocation has been 

committed (‘the Tranche 2 spend requirement’) via a Section 151 officer 

Statement of Grant Usage.  

 
6.4. The Tranche 3 allocation will be paid once the Council has demonstrated 

that at least 80% of the Tranche 1 and Tranche 2 allocations have been 

Page 32



 

5 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

committed (‘the Tranche 3 spend requirement’) via a Section 151 officer 

Statement of Grant Usage.  

 
6.5. The Tranche 4 allocation will be paid once the Council has demonstrated 

that at least 80% of the Tranche 1, Tranche 2 and Tranche 3 allocations 

have been committed (‘the Tranche 4 spend requirement’) via a Section 

151 officer Statement of Grant Usage. 

 
6.6. Should the Council not meet the spend requirement for Tranche 2, 3 or 4 

payments by the dates set out in Table 3, DLUHC will consider putting in 

place further payment dates.  

 
6.7. The Council may wish to return unspent monies to the Department. 

 
6.8. DLUHC reserves the right to request the return of some or all of the capital 

and resource funding if the Council significantly reduces its agreed 

delivery target or withdraws from LAHF R3 completely.  

 
Table 3 – Payments timetable 

 

Payment milestone Requirements for 

payment 

milestone 

Payment by 

Tranche 1  

(30% of total Year 1 

capital allocation) 

100% of programme 

revenue allocation 

MOU signed with 

DLUHC 

By 1 July 2024 (if a MOU is signed 

by 12 June) 

or 

By 12 August 2024 (if a MOU is 

signed by 12 July 2024) 

Tranche 2  

(70% of Year 1 capital 

allocation) 

Statement of Grant 

Usage (SOGU) 

demonstrating 

60% of the 

Tranche 1 first 

tranche has been 

committed*, AND 

 

Relevant 

monitoring 

information (MI) 

submitted  

By 4 November 2024 (if SOGU 

provided by 7 October) and all MI 

submitted to schedule.  

Or 

By 13 December 2024 (if SOGU 

provided by 8 November) and all 

MI submitted to schedule.  

 

(With further payment windows in 

January 2025, and March 2025 

deadlines TBC) 

Page 33



 

6 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

Please note that Year 2 allocation can be paid in full, in a combined tranche 3 & 4 

payment if the relevant milestone is met and SOGU submitted by relevant 

deadline1. 

Tranche 3  

(50% of Year 2 capital 

allocation) 

Statement of Grant 

Usage (SOGU) 

demonstrating 

80% of the 

Tranches 1 and 2 

have been 

committed*, AND 

 

Relevant 

monitoring 

information (MI) 

submitted 

By 2 April 2025 (if SOGU provided 

by 3 March) and all MI submitted 

to schedule.  

Or 

By 4 June 2025 (if SOGU provided 

by 2 May) and all MI submitted to 

schedule.  

(With further payment windows in 

September 2025, November 2025, 

January 2026, and March 2026 

deadlines TBC) 

Tranche 4  

(50% of Year 2 capital 

allocation) 

Statement of Grant 

Usage (SOGU) 

demonstrating 

80% of the 

Tranches 1, 2 and 

3 have been 

committed*, AND 

 

Relevant 

monitoring 

information (MI) 

By 3 September 2025 (if SOGU 

provided by 6 August) and all MI 

submitted to schedule. 

Or 

By 5 November 2025 (if SOGU 

provided by 8 October) and all MI 

submitted to schedule.  

(With further payment windows in 

January 2026, and March 2026 

deadlines TBC) 

 

* Note:  committed spend in table 1 refers only to capital grant spend (and does not 

include revenue grant spend  
 

 

7. Charging Affordable Rents for LAHF R3 funded homes 

 

 

1 For local authorities seeking to accelerate delivery, a combined tranche 3 & 4 payment can be made. 

The SOGU needs to demonstrate the local authority has committed 80% of the combined Tranche 1, 

2 and 3 total grants paid (or due.)  

 

Page 34



 

7 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

7.1. The LAHF Prospectus specifies “It is up to local authorities to determine 

the precise rent level and tenure of homes in line with the fund objectives. 

This could include…Affordable Rent.” 

 

7.2. The Rent Standard https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/rent-

standard/rent-standard-april-2023-accessible-version provides that 

Affordable Rents may be charged only in limited circumstances.  

 

7.3. This MOU records the agreement between the Secretary of State and the 

Council that relevant accommodation, provided by the Council or a partner 

Registered Provider pursuant to LAHF grant funding, is permitted to be let 

at an Affordable Rent, and that accordingly that an Affordable Rent may be 

charged for such accommodation in accordance with paragraph 3.8b of 

the Rent Standard - April 2023. 

 

7.4. In Paragraph 7.3, “relevant accommodation” means accommodation: 

• in the Council area; 

• which is being used to further the LAHF objectives set out at 

paragraph 2.2 of the MOU; 

• which has never been let at a social rent; and 

• where the accommodation is provided by a partner Registered 
Provider, for which the Council has agreed that the partner 
Registered Provider may charge affordable rent. 
 

 
8. Roles and Responsibilities 

 
 

DLUHC Responsibilities   
 

8.1. DLUHC is responsible for setting national housing policy, providing 

grant(s) to the Council and monitoring the delivery of homes.  

 

Council Responsibilities (fund delivery) 
 

8.2. The Council will make housing investment decisions, review existing 

housing policies and products, maximise leverage of this public sector 

investment and ensure that funds provide value for money and are 

deliverable within the timescale of the fund. The Council may work in 

partnership with private Registered Providers, local authority housing 

companies or other bodies to deliver homes. The Council will also report 

on the fund by providing Management Information (MI) as set out in 

Annex A of this MOU and will work with DLUHC to ensure they have the 

capability to deliver the fund and provide MI within the set timescales.  

 

Page 35

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/rent-standard/rent-standard-april-2023-accessible-version
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/rent-standard/rent-standard-april-2023-accessible-version


 

8 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

8.3. The Council is expected to have the necessary governance and assurance 

arrangements in place and that all legal and other statutory obligations and 

consents will be adhered to, which may include, but not solely: 

 

• subsidy control, at all levels e.g. the funding the Council allocates 

to project deliverers and subsidies that project deliverers provide to 

third parties. 

 

• equalities duties, the Council must ensure that all LAHF funded 

activity is delivered in accordance with its obligations under the 

public sector equality duty (PSED.) 

 

• procurement, the Council must ensure that the allocation of 

funding to project deliverers that constitutes a procurement is 

managed in compliance with the public contract regulations. 

 

• fraud, the Council must ensure that robust arrangements are in 

place to manage fraud risk, including ensuring that project 

deliverers have robust fraud risk management process and paying 

particular attention to projects that involve the payment of grants to 

beneficiaries e.g. businesses. 

 
8.4. The Council’s Section 151 Officer is expected to ensure that these legal 

duties and all other relevant duties are considered and that delivery of 

LAHF investment is carried out with propriety, regularity, and value for 

money. 

Council Responsibilities (Affordable Rents – where required by LAs)  

8.5. The Council should note (and remind partner Registered Providers) that 

conversion of social rent properties to affordable rent is not permitted 

pursuant to paragraph 3.15 of the Rent Standard other than in the 

circumstances set out in chapter 2 of the Rent Policy Statement. 

 

8.6. Where the Council has agreed that a partner Registered Provider may 

charge affordable rent, the Council will confirm to the Registered Provider 

that the Registered Provider may charge affordable rent in accordance 

with Paragraph 7.3 of this MOU. 

 

8.7. The Council will require partner Registered Providers to provide details to 

the Council of any accommodation provided pursuant to LAHF grant 

funding for which Affordable Rent is charged.   

 

8.8. The Council will maintain a register of any accommodation provided 

pursuant to LAHF grant funding for which it or a partner Registered 

Provider is charging Affordable Rent. This register should be available for 

inspection upon request by either DLUHC or the Regulator for Social 

Page 36



 

9 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

Housing. The fields of information required in register are specified in 

Annex C.  

 

9. Monitoring Arrangements and Accountability   

  

9.1. The Council will put in place appropriate governance and oversight 

arrangements to ensure that delivery of housing is on track and that plans 

remain ambitious and provide value for money. 

 
Reporting Arrangements 

 
9.2. The Council has agreed to provide reporting information to DLUHC on 

fund allocations and delivery. The Council will be asked to provide a mix of 

quantitative and qualitative summary updates to DLUHC; a full list of MI 

can be found in Annex A.  

 
9.3. The first report will be due in September 2024 and then every two months 

thereafter, until the Council’s programme has completed. The schedule for 

monitoring reports is outlined in Annex B. 

 
9.4. Spend outturn and forecast should be signed off by the Section 151 officer 

or deputy Section 151 officer. 

 
9.5. A Statement of Grant Usage Section 151 officer or deputy Section 151 

officer should be submitted when: 

 

• at least 60% of the Tranche 1 allocation has been committed. 

• at least 80% of the Tranche 1 and 2 allocations have been 

committed. 

• at least 80% of the Trance 1, 2 and 3 allocations have been 

committed. 

 
9.6. The Council also agrees to work with the department to provide any 

reasonable additional MI as and when requested by the DLUHC Senior 

Reporting Officer (SRO). DLUHC will provide an appropriate amount of 

time to return any additional MI requests.   

 
9.7. The Council agrees to work collaboratively with any requests from DLUHC 

to support any retrospective assessment or evaluation as to the impact or 

value for money of LAHF. As a minimum, the Council is expected to 

monitor spend, outputs and outcomes against agreed indicators and keep 

this information for at least 5 years.  

 
 

10. Governance & Assurance 

 

Page 37



 

10 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

10.1. The Council is expected to ensure that all legal and other statutory 

obligations and consents will be adhered to, which may include, but not 

solely, state aid / subsidy control, equalities duties, procurement, health 

and safety, and fraud prevention. The Council has prerogative to establish 

internal governance and assurance arrangements as they see fit to 

achieve this. 
 

10.2. The Council will ensure data can be shared for the prevention and 

detection of fraud by including the following clause in all agreements with 

companies or external entities in relation to LAHF – including, but not 

limited to, property contracts, professional services contracts, construction 

contracts and lease agreements: 

“Data may be shared with other enforcement agencies for the prevention 
and detection of crime.”    
 

  

Page 38



 

11 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

  
Signed for and on behalf of DLUHC      
 
Signature:   
   

   

Name:     
Position:   
   

Date:   

 
Signed for and on behalf of LA Name 

   

 
Signature:      
   

   

Name:           
Position:       Date:       
  
  

Page 39



 

12 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

Annex A – Reporting and Monitoring Arrangements   
     
Scope and Purpose  
 
1. This annex sets out the agreed reporting and monitoring arrangements for LAHF, 

including the expected frequency and content of the regular reports that the 

Council will provide to DLUHC. 

    
DLUHC Role   
 
2. DLUHC will support the running of the fund and maintain a national picture of 

delivery by putting in place a proportionate monitoring and governance 

framework. This will include a fund governance board(s) attended by the DLUHC 

Senior Reporting Officer (SRO) and other relevant stakeholders. Wherever 

possible DLUHC will avoid duplication of requests towards the Council. 

   
Council Role   
 
3. Day-to-day project monitoring and delivery responsibilities will be delegated to 

the Council. The Council will submit reports to DLUHC in accordance with the 

agreed timescales and frequency set out in the MoU.  The Council will also work 

with DLUHC to provide any reasonable additional MI required as and when 

requested by the DLUHC Senior Reporting Officer. DLUHC will provide an 

appropriate amount of time to return any additional MI requests.   

   
Management Information (MI)  
 
4. The list of MI is split between operational data – required for monitoring the 

ongoing fund delivery (Table 4) and evaluation data (Table 5) required to assess 

the strategy-level success of the fund and inform future policy development. 

Tables 4 and 5 present the required routine MI and is subject to change, with 

agreement by DLUHC and the Council. For MI and payment purposes, 

“committed spend” is considered funding which has been allocated to a property 

where there has been an exchange of contracts or equivalent milestone where 

exchange of contract will not occur. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



 

13 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

Table 4 – Monitoring Data 

  Item Frequency   

Number of properties where contracts exchanged, including:  

• bedroom size 

• whether located in another borough area 

• who will own the dwellings 

• how properties obtained 

Every 2 months  

Number of properties occupied/ ready to let, including bedroom size Every 2 months  

Number of resettlement scheme households housed Every 2 months  

Number of pending resettlement scheme properties pre-matched to current/ 
former bridging hotel households 

Every 2 months  

Total expenditure (incl grant and other funding) Every 2 months  

Total committed spend (incl grant and other funding) Every 2 months  

DLUHC grant used Every 2 months 

Overall assessment (RAG rated) of whether delivery is on track as 
determined by the responsible Council officer 

Every 2 months  

 

Table 5 – Evaluation Data 

Item Frequency   

How properties have been sourced (e.g., through stock acquisition or 
another delivery route) 

In April 2026 and 
thereafter upon 
request to aid with 
evaluation of the 
fund 

How the Council has funded its contributory share 

Breakdown of resettlement scheme households housed by previous 
housing situation, e.g., in bridging hotel, in LA emergency 
accommodation/temporary accommodation 

Tenancy duration 

Rent levels 

Number of properties obtained outside the local authority’s area, if 
applicable, and where these are located. 

 

5. In addition, to enable the assessment of relative value for money and to assist 

with future spending reviews, we may occasionally ask for additional information 

including details of how the fund is delivered and housing market conditions. This 

will provide important data to support future policy developments and will also 

support engagement with HM Treasury. This information will be provided to 

agreed timeframes when requested by DLUHC.   

 
6. Should the Council wish to amend and/or not collect any of these proposed data 

points, they should submit a proposal to DLUHC for agreement.  

 
Frequency of Reporting   
 
7. The Council will be asked to provide reports every two months. The schedule for 

monitoring reports is outlined in Annex B. 

   

Page 41



 

14 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

Data Consistency   
 
8. DLUHC and the Council have a shared commitment to ensure that, for clarity and 

transparency purposes, consistent methods of recording outputs are maintained.  

It is expected that the provided reporting will be robust, accurate and quality 

assured to a high standard.  As such minimal revisions would be expected – 

although, where these are required, DLUHC should be advised as soon as 

practical.  

   
Use of Material Provided   
 
9. DLUHC will use the provided material to monitor delivery nationally. 

 
  

Page 42



 

15 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

Annex B – Monitoring Milestones 
 
1. The Council is requested to submit the monitoring information summarised in 

Annex A via a Microsoft Form every two months by 5pm on the dates outlined 
below. DLUHC will provide the link to the form directly to the Council well in 
advance of each touchpoint date. 

 
2. DLUHC will provide full guidance for submitting the form directly well in advance 

of each touchpoint date. 
 

Table 6 – Monitoring Touchpoint Dates 

 
 

Monitoring touchpoint  Microsoft Form to be submitted by 
5pm on the following dates  

Touchpoint 1  02 September 2024 

Touchpoint 2  04 November 2024  

Touchpoint 3  06 January 2025 

Touchpoints 4-12  TBC 

Evaluation  April 2026 
  

Page 43



 

16 
 

OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 

Annex C – Register of LAHF accommodation for which an Affordable Rent is 
charged  
 
This annex sets out the agreed information which will be contained in the Council’s 
Register of LAHF accommodation for which an Affordable Rent is charged.  
 
This register should be available for inspection upon request by either DLUHC or the 
Regulator for Social Housing.  
 
Property address     
Completion date    
Name of Registered 
Provider 

   

Registration Code    

 
(Note: The Council is not required to submit this information as part of regular 
delivery monitoring submissions.) 
 
 

Page 44



Property 

Number

Number of 

bedrooms
Price Property - Acquisition Type of property Property Type

Legal Fees - 

On Costs 

(£1,500 per 

property)

Additional 

Searches 

(500 per 

property)

Repair time 

(£2,000 per 

property)

1 2 £275,000 New Build
Temporary 

Accommodation
£1,500 £500 £2,000

2 2 £275,000 New Build Resettlement £1,500 £500 £2,000

3 2 £275,000 New Build Resettlement £1,500 £500 £2,000

4 4 £385,000 New Build Resettlement (4+) £1,500 £500 £2,000

Total 10 £1,210,000 £6,000 £2,000 £8,000

Property 

Number

Number of 

bedrooms
Price Property - Acquisition Type of property Property Type

Legal Fees - 

On Costs 

(£1,500 per 

property)

Additional 

Searches 

(500 per 

property)

Repair time 

(£2,000 per 

property)

1 2 £150,000
Ex-council Masionette 

Merlin Cres

Temporary 

Accommodation
£1,500 £500 £2,000

2 2 £170,000
Ex-council Flat Beacon 

Lane
Resettlement £1,500 £500 £2,000

3 2 £165,000 Ex-council  flat Tor Close Resettlement £1,500 £500 £2,000

4 4 £300,000 Ex council - Ribston Ave Resettlement (4+) £1,500 £500 £2,000

Total 10 £785,000 £6,000 £2,000 £8,000

Oncosts

Option 1

Option 2
OncostsP

age 45



Refit - 

Works 

(£5,000 per 

property)

Total

DLUHC Base 

Grant 

Contribution 

DLUHC Base 

Grant and 

Additional 

New Homes

Additional 

Property 

Grant

ECC 

Contribution

£5,000 £284,000 £120,000 £124,800 £21,000 £143,000

£5,000 £284,000 £120,000 £124,800 £21,000 £143,000

£5,000 £284,000 £120,000 £126,000 £21,000 £143,000

£5,000 £394,000 £150,000 £156,000 £21,000 £223,000

£20,000 £1,246,000 £510,000 £531,600 £84,000 £630,400

Repair - 

Works 
Total

DLUHC Base 

Grant 

Contribution 

DLUHC Base 

Grant and 

Additional 

New Homes

Additional 

Property 

Grant

ECC 

Contribution

£20,000 £174,000 £120,000 N/A £21,000 £33,000

£20,000 £194,000 £120,000 N/A £21,000 £53,000

£20,000 £189,000 £120,000 N/A £21,000 £48,000

£30,000 £334,000 £150,000 N/A £21,000 £163,000

£90,000 £891,000 £510,000 £84,000 £297,000

Oncosts

Oncosts

P
age 46



Property
Median Market 

Rent

Affordable 

Monthly 

Rent 

Capped at 

LHA +£100

Affordabl

e Weekly 

Rent

Annual Rent Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

2 Bed £1,200 £892.83 £206.04 £10,713.96 £10,821.10 £10,929.31 £11,038.60 £11,148.99

2 Bed £1,200 £892.83 £206.04 £10,713.96 £10,821.10 £10,929.31 £11,038.60 £11,148.99

2 Bed £1,200 £892.83 £206.04 £10,713.96 £10,821.10 £10,929.31 £11,038.60 £11,148.99

4 Bed £2,350 £1,396.45 £322.26 £16,757.40 £16,924.97 £17,094.22 £17,265.17 £17,437.82

£48,899.28 £49,388.27 £49,882.16 £50,380.98 £50,884.79

£5,000 £5,100.00 £5,202.00 £5,306.04 £5,412.16

£10,000 £10,200.00 £10,404.00 £10,612.08 £10,824.32

£16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480

£4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000

£2,445 £2,469 £2,494 £2,519 £2,544

£37,925 £38,249 £38,580 £38,917 £39,261

£10,974.32 £11,138.86 £11,302.05 £11,463.81 £11,624.07

Oncosts Total

Grand Total

ASSUMING 1% ANNUAL RENTAL INCREASE

Rental Income Total

Tech Officer

Housing Officer

Planned Maintenance

Reactive Repairs

Bad Debt and Voids @5%

P
age 47



Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 Year 14 Year 15

£11,260.48 £11,373.08 £11,486.82 £11,601.68 £11,717.70 £11,834.88 £11,953.23 £12,072.76 £12,193.49 £12,315.42

£11,260.48 £11,373.08 £11,486.82 £11,601.68 £11,717.70 £11,834.88 £11,953.23 £12,072.76 £12,193.49 £12,315.42

£11,260.48 £11,373.08 £11,486.82 £11,601.68 £11,717.70 £11,834.88 £11,953.23 £12,072.76 £12,193.49 £12,315.42

£17,612.20 £17,788.32 £17,966.20 £18,145.86 £18,327.32 £18,510.59 £18,695.70 £18,882.66 £19,071.48 £19,262.20

£51,393.63 £51,907.57 £52,426.65 £52,950.91 £53,480.42 £54,015.23 £54,555.38 £55,100.93 £55,651.94 £56,208.46

£5,520.40 £5,630.81 £5,743.43 £5,858.30 £5,975.46 £6,094.97 £6,216.87 £6,341.21 £6,468.03 £6,597.39

£11,040.81 £11,261.62 £11,486.86 £11,716.59 £11,950.93 £12,189.94 £12,433.74 £12,682.42 £12,936.07 £13,194.79

£16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480

£4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000

£2,570 £2,595 £2,621 £2,648 £2,674 £2,701 £2,728 £2,755 £2,783 £2,810

£39,611 £39,968 £40,332 £40,702 £41,080 £41,466 £41,858 £42,259 £42,667 £43,083

£11,782.74 £11,939.76 £12,095.03 £12,248.48 £12,400.01 £12,549.55 £12,697.00 £12,842.26 £12,985.25 £13,125.86

ASSUMING 1% ANNUAL RENTAL INCREASE

P
age 48



Year 16 Year 17 Year 18 Year 19 Year 20 Year 21 Year 22 Year 23 Year 24 Year 25

£12,438.57 £12,562.96 £12,688.59 £12,815.48 £12,943.63 £13,073.07 £13,203.80 £13,335.84 £13,469.19 £13,603.89

£12,438.57 £12,562.96 £12,688.59 £12,815.48 £12,943.63 £13,073.07 £13,203.80 £13,335.84 £13,469.19 £13,603.89

£12,438.57 £12,562.96 £12,688.59 £12,815.48 £12,943.63 £13,073.07 £13,203.80 £13,335.84 £13,469.19 £13,603.89

£19,454.82 £19,649.37 £19,845.86 £20,044.32 £20,244.76 £20,447.21 £20,651.68 £20,858.20 £21,066.78 £21,277.45

£56,770.55 £57,338.25 £57,911.63 £58,490.75 £59,075.66 £59,666.41 £60,263.08 £60,865.71 £61,474.37 £62,089.11

£6,729.34 £6,863.93 £7,001.21 £7,141.23 £7,284.06 £7,429.74 £7,578.33 £7,729.90 £7,884.50 £8,042.19

£13,458.68 £13,727.86 £14,002.41 £14,282.46 £14,568.11 £14,859.47 £15,156.66 £15,459.80 £15,768.99 £16,084.37

£16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480

£4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000

£2,839 £2,867 £2,896 £2,925 £2,954 £2,983 £3,013 £3,043 £3,074 £3,104

£43,507 £43,939 £44,379 £44,828 £45,286 £45,753 £46,228 £46,713 £47,207 £47,711

£13,263.99 £13,399.55 £13,532.43 £13,662.52 £13,789.71 £13,913.88 £14,034.93 £14,152.73 £14,267.16 £14,378.10

ASSUMING 1% ANNUAL RENTAL INCREASE

P
age 49



Year 26 Year 27 Year 28 Year 29 Year 30 Year 31 Year 32 Year 33 Year 34 Year 35

£13,739.93 £13,877.32 £14,016.10 £14,156.26 £14,297.82 £14,440.80 £14,585.21 £14,731.06 £14,878.37 £15,027.15

£13,739.93 £13,877.32 £14,016.10 £14,156.26 £14,297.82 £14,440.80 £14,585.21 £14,731.06 £14,878.37 £15,027.15

£13,739.93 £13,877.32 £14,016.10 £14,156.26 £14,297.82 £14,440.80 £14,585.21 £14,731.06 £14,878.37 £15,027.15

£21,490.23 £21,705.13 £21,922.18 £22,141.40 £22,362.82 £22,586.44 £22,812.31 £23,040.43 £23,270.84 £23,503.54

£62,710.00 £63,337.10 £63,970.47 £64,610.18 £65,256.28 £65,908.84 £66,567.93 £67,233.61 £67,905.95 £68,585.00

£8,203.03 £8,367.09 £8,534.43 £8,705.12 £8,879.22 £9,056.81 £9,237.94 £9,422.70 £9,611.16 £9,803.38

£16,406.06 £16,734.18 £17,068.86 £17,410.24 £17,758.45 £18,113.62 £18,475.89 £18,845.41 £19,222.31 £19,606.76

£16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480

£4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000

£3,136 £3,167 £3,199 £3,231 £3,263 £3,295 £3,328 £3,362 £3,395 £3,429

£48,225 £48,748 £49,282 £49,826 £50,380 £50,946 £51,522 £52,110 £52,709 £53,319

£14,485.41 £14,588.97 £14,688.65 £14,784.31 £14,875.79 £14,962.98 £15,045.70 £15,123.82 £15,197.18 £15,265.61

ASSUMING 1% ANNUAL RENTAL INCREASE

P
age 50



Year 36 Year 37 Year 38 Year 39 Year 40 Year 41 Year 42 Year 43 Year 44 Year 45

£15,177.43 £15,329.20 £15,482.49 £15,637.32 £15,793.69 £15,951.63 £16,111.14 £16,272.25 £16,434.98 £16,599.33

£15,177.43 £15,329.20 £15,482.49 £15,637.32 £15,793.69 £15,951.63 £16,111.14 £16,272.25 £16,434.98 £16,599.33

£15,177.43 £15,329.20 £15,482.49 £15,637.32 £15,793.69 £15,951.63 £16,111.14 £16,272.25 £16,434.98 £16,599.33

£23,738.58 £23,975.96 £24,215.72 £24,457.88 £24,702.46 £24,949.49 £25,198.98 £25,450.97 £25,705.48 £25,962.53

£69,270.85 £69,963.56 £70,663.20 £71,369.83 £72,083.53 £72,804.36 £73,532.41 £74,267.73 £75,010.41 £75,760.51

£9,999.45 £10,199.44 £10,403.43 £10,611.49 £10,823.72 £11,040.20 £11,261.00 £11,486.22 £11,715.95 £11,950.27

£19,998.90 £20,398.87 £20,806.85 £21,222.99 £21,647.45 £22,080.40 £22,522.00 £22,972.44 £23,431.89 £23,900.53

£16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480

£4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000

£3,464 £3,498 £3,533 £3,568 £3,604 £3,640 £3,677 £3,713 £3,751 £3,788

£53,942 £54,576 £55,223 £55,883 £56,555 £57,241 £57,940 £58,652 £59,378 £60,119

£15,328.97 £15,387.08 £15,439.76 £15,486.86 £15,528.18 £15,563.55 £15,592.78 £15,615.68 £15,632.05 £15,641.69

ASSUMING 1% ANNUAL RENTAL INCREASE

P
age 51



Year 46 Year 47 Year 48 Year 49 Year 50

£16,765.32 £16,932.97 £17,102.30 £17,273.33 £17,446.06

£16,765.32 £16,932.97 £17,102.30 £17,273.33 £17,446.06

£16,765.32 £16,932.97 £17,102.30 £17,273.33 £17,446.06

£26,222.16 £26,484.38 £26,749.23 £27,016.72 £27,286.88

£76,518.12 £77,283.30 £78,056.13 £78,836.69 £79,625.06 £3,152,203.20

£12,189.27 £12,433.06 £12,681.72 £12,935.35 £13,194.06 £422,897.01

£24,378.54 £24,866.11 £25,363.44 £25,870.70 £26,388.12 £845,794.01

£16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £16,480 £824,000.00

£4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £4,000 £200,000.00

£3,826 £3,864 £3,903 £3,942 £3,981 £157,610.16

£60,874 £61,643 £62,428 £63,228 £64,043 £2,450,301.18

£15,644.40 £15,639.97 £15,628.17 £15,608.80 £15,581.63 £701,902.01

ASSUMING 1% ANNUAL RENTAL INCREASE

P
age 52



 
 

Equality Impact Assessment: The Local Housing Authority Fund (LHAF) 
 
The Equality Act 2010 includes a general duty which requires public authorities, in the exercise of their functions, to have due regard to the 
need to: 
 

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act.  

• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected characteristic and people who do not share it. 

• Foster good relations between people who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not 
 
In order to comply with the general duty authorities must assess the impact on equality of decisions, policies and practices.  These duties do 
not prevent the authority from reducing services where necessary, but they offer a way of developing proposals that consider the impacts on all 
members of the community. 
 
Authorities which fail to carry out equality impact assessments risk making poor and unfair decisions which may discriminate against particular 
groups and worsen inequality.  
 

Committee name and 
date: 

 

Report Title 
 

Decisions being 
recommended:  

 

People with protected 
characteristics potentially 
impacted by the decisions 
to be made:  
 

Executive Committee 4th June 
2024 
Extraordinary Council meeting – 
10th June 2024 
 

Local Authority Housing Fund 
Round 3 

To sign MOU with DLUHC and to 
purchase 4 units of 
accommodation 

See below 

Factors to consider in the assessment:  For each of the groups below, an assessment has been made on whether the proposed 
decision will have a positive, negative or neutral impact. This is must be noted in the table below alongside brief details of why this 

P
age 53



conclusion has been reached and notes of any mitigation proposed. Where the impact is negative, a high, medium or low 
assessment is given. The assessment rates the impact of the policy based on the current situation (i.e. disregarding any actions 
planned to be carried out in future). 

 

High impact – a significant potential impact, risk of exposure, history of complaints, no mitigating measures in place etc. 
Medium impact –some potential impact exists, some mitigating measures are in place, poor evidence 
Low impact – almost no relevancy to the process, e.g. an area that is very much legislation led and where the Council has very 
little discretion 

 

Protected characteristic/ area of 
interest 

Positive 
or 
Negative 
Impact 

High, 
Medium or 
Low 
Impact 

Reason 

Race and ethnicity (including 
Gypsies and Travellers; migrant 
workers; asylum seekers). 

Positive medium The LHAF is targeted funding to provide homes for refugees who 
have come to England from areas of conflict.  The properties being 
purchased are to be ring-fenced for the use of households from 
Afghanistan as per Grant restrictions.  For future let’s if there are 
no further eligible cohorts, then the properties can be used to meet 
the housing needs of Exeter citizens.  One of the properties will be 
used as temporary accommodation to meet the needs of homeless 
households in Exeter. 

Disability: as defined by the Equality 
Act – a person has a disability if they 
have a physical or mental impairment 
that has a substantial and long-term 
adverse impact on their ability to carry 
out normal day-to-day activities. 

Positive Low As above 

Sex/Gender Positive Low As above 

Gender reassignment Positive Low As above 

Religion and belief (includes no 
belief, some philosophical beliefs such 
as Buddhism and sects within 
religions). 

Positive Low As above 

Sexual orientation (including 
heterosexual, lesbian, gay, bisexual). 

Positive Low As above 

P
age 54



Protected characteristic/ area of 
interest 

Positive 
or 
Negative 
Impact 

High, 
Medium or 
Low 
Impact 

Reason 

Age (children and young people aged 
0-24; adults aged 25-50; younger 
older people aged 51-75/80; older 
people 81+; frail older people; people 
living with age related conditions. The 
age categories are for illustration only 
as overriding consideration should be 
given to needs). 

Positive Low As above 

Pregnancy and maternity including 
new and breast feeding mothers 

Positive Low As above 

Marriage and civil partnership 
status 

- - (No negative impacts identified) 

 
Actions identified that will mitigate any negative impacts and/or promote inclusion 
 
 

Officer: Chris Stocks 

Date: 19th April 2024 

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO EXECUTIVE 
Date of Meeting: 4th June 2024 

Report of: Director Finance 

Title: Review of the Corporate Risk Register 

Is this a Key Decision?  

No 

Is this an Executive or Council Function? 

Risk management is a Council function. 

Risk Management is an important element of the council’s Code of Corporate 

Governance. 

Regular monitoring of the council’s corporate risks helps to ensure that the council’s 

business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, that public 

money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently, and 

effectively. 

1. What is the report about? 

1.1 The report advises the committee of the council’s risk management progress and 

presents the revised Corporate Risk Register (Appendix A), which has been linked to the 

Council’s Strategic Priorities. 

2. Recommendations:  

2.1 That the Executive proposes to Council any necessary actions to help mitigate the 

risks for which it is responsible. 

3. Reasons for the recommendation: 

3.1 To ensure that the risks associated with meeting the Council’s strategic priorities are 

properly considered, managed, and monitored. 

4. What are the resource implications including non financial resources 

4.1 The Executive and, Directors and Senior Managers, as appropriate, are asked to 

review the Corporate Risk Register on a quarterly basis. The register is reviewed 

quarterly by the Strategic Management Board.  

4.2 Any actions agreed to mitigate the risks identified in the Corporate Risk Register may 

result in some resource implication. These would be subject to a specific report and the 

resource implications would be considered in that report. 

5. Section 151 Officer comments: 

5.1 SMB and the Executive have produced an agreed new register based on the Councils 

Corporate Priorities. A new summary page has been added setting out the level of 

intervention required and the impact of failing to address the risk. The risk in relation to 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



finance has been updated to reflect the fact that a balanced budget has been set for 

2024-25. This does not mitigate the longer term associated risks but carries the risk 

forward. 

6. What are the legal aspects? 

6.1 None identified. 

7. Monitoring Officer’s comments: 

7.1 The risk register identifies for members attention the overall risk to the Council in 

order that this can be understood and managed proactively, optimising success by 

minimising threats. 

8. Report details: 

8.1 In light of a review of the council’s approach to risk management, the Corporate Risk 

Register (Appendix A) has been revised following a workshop facilitated by the Council’s 

insurers, Zurich. The risks identified in the revised Corporate Risk Register link to the 

Council’s Strategic Priorities. As part of the Council’s Improvement Programme, the 

Strategic Management Board has reviewed the council’s approach to risk and propose 

that the Corporate Risk Register should be presented to Executive to provide assurance 

that the appropriate mitigations are in place. The council’s Audit & Governance 

Committee will continue to have a role in ensuring that the council has a robust process in 

place for identifying and mitigating risks. 

8.2 Each risk is assessed against the following matrix, assessing the likelihood and 

impact before and after mitigation. 

 

8.3 The Risk Register includes a summary page, which enables Members to see the 

scope of the corporate risks in one straightforward table.  

8.4 Alongside each risk on the summary page, there is a table, which sets out an 

assessment of the resources required to manage the risks under the themes of Time, 

Financial, People and Assets. This will allow for an assessment of the resources required 

to mitigate each risk to an acceptable level allowing members to determine if the 

resources required are deliverable and achievable. 

8.5 In addition, the summary page includes an assessment of how the risks will affect a 

range of drivers. The drivers are set out below and look at the impact of failing to deliver 

the corporate priorities and failure in each of the four pillars. 

4 4 8 12 16

3 3 6 9 12

2 2 4 6 8

1 1 2 3 4

1 2 3 4

Impact

   
Li

ke
lih

o
o

d

Page 58



Political Financial Reputational  Regulatory Legal Compliance Community  

 

8.6 The two tables above use Very high, High, Medium, Low and Very Low to assess the 

resources required and the risk drivers. 

8.7 The Final Column will assess the Council’s risk appetite, whether it is open to risk, 

more cautious or even risk averse. 

9. How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 

9.1 Good governance contributes to the Council’s purpose of a “Well Run Council.” 

10. What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 

10.1 N/A 

11. Equality Act 2010 (The Act)  

11.1 Under the Act’s Public Sector Equalities Duty, decision makers are required to 

consider the need to: 

• eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited conduct; 

• advance equality by encouraging participation, removing disadvantage, taking 

account of disabilities and meeting people’s needs; and 

• foster good relations between people by tackling prejudice and promoting 

understanding. 

11.2 In order to comply with the general duty authorities must assess the impact on 

equality of decisions, policies, and practices. These duties do not prevent the authority 

from reducing services where necessary, but they offer a way of developing proposals 

that consider the impacts on all members of the community. 

11.3 In making decisions the authority must take into account the potential impact of that 

decision in relation to age, disability, race/ethnicity (includes Gypsies and Travellers), sex 

and gender, gender identity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, pregnant women and 

new and breastfeeding mothers, marriage, and civil partnership status in coming to a 

decision. 

11.4 In recommending this proposal no potential impact has been identified on people 

with protected characteristics as determined by the Act because the report is for 

information only. 

12. Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:   

12.1 No direct carbon/environmental impacts arising from the recommendations. 

12.2 Actions to mitigate the risks identified in the Corporate Risk Register may result in 

some future impact, however, any actions proposed would be subject to a specific report 

and the impacts would be considered in that report. 

Page 59



13. Are there any other options? 

13.1 N/A 

 

Director Finance, Dave Hodgson 

Author: Lorraine Betts, Organisational Transformation Programme Lead 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 

Background papers used in compiling this report:- 

None 

 
Contact for enquires:  
Democratic Services (Committees) 
Room 4.36 
01392 265275 
 

Page 60



May 2024

L'
h

o
o

d

Im
p

ac
t

R
is

k 

Sc
o

re

L'
h

o
o

d

Im
p

ac
t

R
is

k 

Sc
o

re

1

November 2019 PH - Climate & Ecological 

Change and Communities

Officer Lead:

None Identified

4 4 16 We are working with the University and Devon County Council to support their work in 

this area and focusing on reducing our own carbon emissions.  Our internal carbon net 

zero plan is now the subject of a separate risk register presented half yearly to the Audit 

& Governance Committee by the Corporate Energy Manager, Net Zero Team.

4 4 16 May 2024:                                                                                                                                                                 

A Programme Manager has been recruited for two years to lead on City Wide Net Zero.  The successful 

candidate starts in three months due to existing notice periods.  Exeter Energy presented an overview of 

the proposed Exeter District Heat Network (DHN) to members and a recording is being made available for 

those who were unable to attend.  Progress on the DHN continues and Exeter Energy have submitted 

Apr-30

2

Sport England provide external funding until 2025 and possibly longer.

Playing Pitch Strategy identifies opportunities

SSP has increased leisure membership beyond 10,000 and provides the opportunity for 

wider reach.

Built Facilities Strategy underway.

Engagement with multiple stakeholders around delivery of Wellbeing Exeter.

Strong defined and realistic commercial targets monitored regularly

May 2024: Officers have submitted a funding application to Sport England for work until 2028. The bid is for 

£2.5million and will be heard by a national pannel in June, with results in September. It is linked to the 

future success of Wellbeing Exeter, and to the capital success of the redevelopment of Wonford.

Delivering against the key challenges in the Net Zero Carbon City section of the Corporate Plan

Making progress towards a Healthy and Active City

Potential causes

• Inability to deliver a cost neutral leisure service due to the financial nature of the service, cost of service delivery, and political aspiration of running a well run adequately funded service.

• Increasing socio-economic challenges and their impact on health inequalities and wellbeing with fuel poverty for example, resulting in reduced mental and physical wellbeing, with people in particular groups increasingly feeling isolated and unable to cope.

• Finding a sustainable funding model for Wellbeing Exeter, which we know makes a difference to the health and wellbeing of individuals and communities at a time of increasing pressure on public sector budgets.

• The ongoing risks to public swimming pools, gyms and leisure centres nationwide as a consequence of the Covid pandemic and increasing costs.

• The impact of the increasing cost of living, wage bill and energy on costs, whilst trying to keep costs to Exeter residents low. 

• Responding to the post-pandemic impact on health inequalities and deprivation including a decrease in physical inactivity for those on low incomes or from culturally-diverse communities.

Potential Impacts:

-  Inability to deliver a cost neutral leisure service.

- Conflcit between aspiration of delivering 'cost neutral' and poltical expectation to deliver a well run service.

- Wellbeing Exeter closure and significant impact on creating stronger communities 

- Inequalities deepen across the city.

- Sport England don't continue to fund work - including capital development for Wonford

- Short term changes may not be sustainable

The key challenges are:

• GHG emissions in Exeter were on a downward trajectory with emissions down by a third from 2008 to 2019.  This reduction is largely due to the reduction in the carbon intensity of the national electricity grid.  There has been a 64% reduction in emission from the power sector (with most generation plant located outside Exeter) between 2007 and 

2019.  It is concerning that emissions from buildings and transport are exceeding targets set for 2020 and the lack of progress in these sectors, combined with growth in the city, will potentially lead to increases in emissions.  Significant work to reduce emissions from buildings and transport will be required to deliver Net Zero for the City.

Potential Causes:

No resources currently assigned within ECC to Citywide Net Zero ambitions 

Financial pressures and the large costs of carbon reduction  

Behavioural challenges over influencing businesses and public 

Technical capability to deliver and limited solutions available on the market  

Lack of control over all stakeholders (businesses, visitors etc.)  

Political environment and acceptance of policy changes required

Misalignment with the Devon Climate Plan  and the wider UK plan to reduce carbon emissions

Failure to engage with resident and business of Exeter to ensure solutions proposed meet real need.

Potential Impacts:

Exeter does not meet its citywide target of becoming Net Zero by 2030.

Corporate Risk Register                                     (APPENDIX A)

Ref Tracking notes and monitoring

Review Month:

Target 

Implementation 

Date

Date Risk Identified
Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Mitigations & Controls

Residual Risk

4 3 Ongoing12 3 2 6May 2023 Portfolio Holder for Leisure 

Services and Healthy Living            

Officer Lead:

Director for Culture, Tourism 

and Leisure

P
age 61



May 2024

L'
h

o
o

d

Im
p

ac
t

R
is

k 

Sc
o

re

L'
h

o
o

d

Im
p

ac
t

R
is

k 

Sc
o

re

Ref Tracking notes and monitoring

Review Month:

Target 

Implementation 

Date

Date Risk Identified
Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Mitigations & Controls

Residual Risk

3

Corporate Services and City 

Centre

Officer Lead:

Director Corporate Services
 Market supplement scheme in place

- Apprenticeship opportunities for new and existing staff

- Employing part qualified staff and training them (internal and external) - procurement, 

planning etc.

- Improvements in metric tracking (age, gender, skills profiles)

- Business Partnering model allowing for greater collaboration between service areas 

and HR

-  Metrics reported to SMB

 Ensure robust implementation of new workforce planning process (local mgmt team 

led)

- Utilising agile program to complement modernisation of work environment

- Review of progress against GDR.

Further Mitigations due for completion in next 12 months

- Review of council's Equalities, Diversity and Inclusion arrangements

- Review of recruitment and retention policies

- Roll out of new Performance and Development Review process

- Pay Strategy Review

- Development of Succession Plans for every Service

- Development of training progrramme to meet future needs of the organisation (linked 

to risk 9)

May 2024 - the new Performance and Development Review process is being rolled out and training to 

Managers is currently underway.  The LGA are supporting a peer review of the council's Equalities and 

Diversity arrangements and will identify opportunities for improvement.  The review will take place in early 

June.  A number of HR policies have been updated and reported to JCNC. 

Adapting the  council workforce to ensure appropriate skills and experience (Developing a future proof workforce)

Key Challenges

- the Council is changing and staff will need to develop new knoweldge and skills to meet future needs 

- the Council has an ageing workforce and does not routinely succession plan

- The Council is having difficulty recruiting into key areas

- The Council's workforce is not reflective of the city's demographics

Potential Causes:

- The introduction of new technology to provide an improved customer experience

- Competition from the public and private sector in attracting new employees

-

Potential Impacts:

- Loss of experience

- Increased spending on agency workers

- Not having cost effective council services delivering the right outcomes

- Service disruption

- Cost of appeals / challenges across the council services

- Increased stress / pressure on workforce

June 2019 3 3 9 2 3 6 Jan-23

P
age 62



May 2024

L'
h

o
o

d

Im
p

ac
t

R
is

k 

Sc
o

re

L'
h

o
o

d

Im
p

ac
t

R
is

k 

Sc
o

re

Ref Tracking notes and monitoring

Review Month:

Target 

Implementation 

Date

Date Risk Identified
Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Mitigations & Controls

Residual Risk

4

January 2018 Leader of the Council                         

Officer Lead:      

Director Finance

4 4 16 Detailed MTFP assessed and agreed with Members;

- One Exeter plan agreed and being implemented with suitable governance 

arrangements in place;

- Budget for 2024-25 agreed;

- Significant investment in city centre regeneration (St Sidwell's point & bus station) 

including developing a new vision for the rest of the site which includes mixed use;

- Appropriate level of unringfenced general fund reserves to protect against shocks;

- Identify and bid for alternative sources of funding;

- Lobby government for relaxation of council tax increase restrictions;

- The Council has a clear strategy to address the savings required.                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

2 4 8 Oct 2023 - SMB have met and finalised the proposals to balance the 2024-25 budget.  Some favourable 

assumptions around energy costs, insurance costs and Government Grant have allowed some of the 

income challenges to be addressed and deliver a balanced budget from the Service review proposals.  The 

proposals have been checked and confirmed by each Directors (with a small number being removed).  No 

further reductions are required.  Longer term, there is a need for a further £5.7m reductions of which 

proposals totalling £1.3m have been identified.  The cross cutting work and digital transformation work will 

underpin the Council's approach to addressing this gap.        May 2024 - Initial work has been started by 

SMB in preparation for the 2025-26 budget.  The required reduction remains around £3.5 million after the 

accounts have been closed for 2023-24.  A detailed timetable will be produced shortly.

Feb-24

Potential Causes:

- Inability to deliver £5.4m savings target over four year period (to 2028-29);

- Inability to maintain Business Rates income at levels currently generated;

- Policy, regulatory or legislative changes which are not fully funded from central govt;

- Impact of high inflation, rising interest rates and other external economic factors;

- Potential for Local Government Finance redistribution (including a reset of Business Rates);

- Potential Impacts:

- Significant reductions required to Statutory Services, which become unable to function legally;

- unable to balance budget, Government intervention required;

- larger than anticipated reductions (in year or over longer term).

- reduction in reserves below minimum level;

- impacts on council services and therefore resident outcomes.

Maintaining the Financial Sustainability of the Council

P
age 63



May 2024

L'
h

o
o

d

Im
p

ac
t

R
is

k 

Sc
o

re

L'
h

o
o

d

Im
p

ac
t

R
is

k 

Sc
o

re

Ref Tracking notes and monitoring

Review Month:

Target 

Implementation 

Date

Date Risk Identified
Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Mitigations & Controls

Residual Risk

5

August 2021 Leader of the Council                         

Officer Lead:      

Director Finance

4 4 16 - Consider Programme of Asset rationalisation                                     

- Identify alternative sources of funding to reduce borrowing                                                                                                                        

- Commercial Properties mainly let on a full repairing lease basis                                                                                                        

- Reviewed existing capital programme to defer and remove schemes.                                                                                             

- Change of emphasis to internally borrow in the short term to offset interest rate rises.

4 3 12 October 2023 - Progress has been made in implementing the new structure in Corporate Property to deliver 

the capital programme.  The work on a disposal strategy is continuing, which will allow further works to 

continue.  Priority is being given to those statutory service properties and assets, but this is dependent on 

the Council generating further, significant, capital receipts to deliver without having a substantial, negative 

impact on the Council's revenue position.                                                                       May 2024 - The 

Council is identifying options for potential disposal to generate an income to fund further works.  There is a 

long lead in time however to sales of land and buildings and therefore this will not be a quick fix.  There was 

little progress in delivering the existing capital programme in 2023-24 however the appropriate risk 

measures are in place to ensure our assets are operated safely. 

Feb-24

Potential Causes:

• Council owns 100 operational properties and 600 Commercial Properties as well as 28 Bridges, 50 Parks, 90 Play Areas Footpaths, Highways, walls and a River, Canal and other watercourses     

• Shortages of materials and labour causing delay and increased costs across the capital programme      

• Interest Rate rises causing the cost of borrowing to rise significantly

• Additional Borrowing adds pressure to the financial stability of the Council.

Potential impacts: 

• Increased costs to Council

• Sheer number of assets extremely high for a District Council, potential to cause significant financial harm

• Delay in all projects, predominantly the condition survey projects and HRA programme, leading to prolonged periods of buildings being below the standard the Council is aiming for           

Maintaining the Council's Property and Infrastructure Assets

P
age 64



May 2024

L'
h

o
o

d

Im
p

ac
t

R
is

k 

Sc
o

re

L'
h

o
o

d

Im
p

ac
t

R
is

k 

Sc
o

re

Ref Tracking notes and monitoring

Review Month:

Target 

Implementation 

Date

Date Risk Identified
Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Mitigations & Controls

Residual Risk

6

PFH: City Development

Officer Lead:

Director City Development & 

Housing

Successful bidding for government funding programmes including Brownfield Land 

Release Fund; Garden Communities; One Public Estate; New Development 

Corporations Competition Fund) which support Liveable Exeter and Council Owned 

Building projects and provide capacity for:

      - project management 

      - business cases, feasibility studies, development frameworks and infrastructure 

strategies and plans for strategic sites 

Director of City Development & Housing appointed.

ECC demonstrating willingness to acquire land and property using CPO powers, and 

dispose of land to the private sector, where necessary to move forward in a sensible 

phased programme. 

ECC recognises need to step up the support commensurate with the scale and pace of 

development required

Through the Exeter Design Quality Partnership, adopting an enabling and collaborative 

culture with developers and landowners, instilling confidence in the planning process; 

including providing pre-application advice. Enhanced Member Training is offered to 

improve quality of decision making in planning

Liveable Exeter Place Board established and subject to timely reviews to bring together 

the city's institutions to take ownership of the vision and aspirations and to work 

collectively on obstacles to delivery.                                                                                                                                                                                                  

Following the review of the Senior Management Board, Directors take collective  

ownership of  City Development, Liveable Exeter, net zero, city centre strategy, 

investment and culture and align with other prtogrammes such as Council Owned 

Building and retrofit.

Bringing forward the new Exeter Plan for adoption in 2025.                                        

Further capacity resource to enableeffective development delivery.                                         

Staff training and development.                                                                                 

May 2023: Consultation on an outline draft Exeter Plan was completed; A comprehensive study of Council 

car parks has been concluded; A Stage 1 Feasibility on Southgate completed; Consultants appointed to 

deliver a Development Framework and Design Code for Water Lane; the Exeter Design Quality Partnership 

has been established; Planning Performance Agreements have been completed for Water Lane and Exeter 

St Davids - planning applications anticipated later in year;    a successful recruitment process in City 

Development has been undertaken and only one senior post remains vacant;    consultants have been 

appointed to undertake a FBC for the EDF; The Growth Board meets monthly to monitor progress on 

LE/brownfield sites and identify delivery solutions; a portfolio of sites for R3 BLRF are being brought 

together; Vaughan Road Phase 1 has commenced; a project team has been assembled to kick start City 

Point.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

October 2023: Exeter Plan: Full draft published for 12-week public consultation on 23.10.2023. Liveable 

Exeter Projects: Stage 2 Feasibility Study for ‘Liveable Southgate’ site is underway and due to be 

completed in March 2024; Draft Liveable Water Lane Development Framework and Design Code published 

for 6-week public consultation on 23.10.2023. Exeter Design Quality Partnership (EDQP): A planning 

charter incorporating new pre-application charges to be presented to Executive and Council for approval in 

November/December 2023. Government funding programmes: Work commenced on Business Case for 

Exeter Development Fund; Brownfield Land Release Fund 1 (BLRF). Cathedral & Quay car park and 

Bonhay Meadows - no longer being taken forward and grant monies to be returned to DLUHC; Belle Isle, 

Canal Basin, Mary Arches Car Park and Lower Weir Road - Delivery Plans are being prepared and 

discussions underway with One Public Estate (OPE) to vary the terms of the Grant Funding Agreement to 

allow for delayed land release triggers. Former ECL sites: Clifton Hill - subject to confirmation by Full 

Council, a delivery plan and business case will be produced. Council Owned Building Programme (COB): 

Vaughan Road - Phase 1 (35 homes) under construction and Delivery Plans for phases 2 & 3 (56 

homes)being prepared; Laings, Rennes House, Chestnut Avenue & Clifford Close - Project Plans for each 

site being prepared. Planning Applications:  Outline planning application received for Water Lane “southern 

development zone”; Detailed planning application for Haven Banks retail park to be considered by Planning 

Committee on 05.12.2023. Pre-applications discussions with Network Rail on St David’s Station car parks 
PH - City Development

Potential Causes:

- brownfield first approach is the most sustainable option, and aligns with government policy but most sites are currently unviable and developers are unwilling to invest, resulting in sites being stalled

- inadequate infrastructure funding for brownfield land regeneration

- lack of specialist staff resources to support the work

- inability to address complex land assembly and infrastructure challenges

- significant abnormal costs associated with this type of programme

- low land/property values and lack of investment appetite (especially BtR sector)

- Significant local community opposition to development

Potential impacts:

- significant loss of income to fund services/infrastructure (CIL; S106; NHB; Council Tax; Business Rates) and inability to secure external funding from government

- increased traffic congestion and net-zero not achieved by 2030

- Exeter Plan found unsound resulting in city housing needs not being met and exacerbaing the Devon Housing Crisis, especially in terms of affordable housing; lack of 5-year housing supply resulting in loss of planning control/sub-optimal development and loss of green space/special characteristics of Exeter.

- new neighbourhoods not created, existing communities become unbalanced and suffer from lack of infrastructure/services,  and economy of the city is stalled

- active travel and accessible city aspirations not met

- unsustainable development and new homes do not meet Garden City principles

- housing built on greenfield sites 

Delivering Housing and Building Great Neighbourhoods and Communities 

November 2021 4 4 16 4 4 16

P
age 65



May 2024

L'
h

o
o

d

Im
p

ac
t

R
is

k 

Sc
o

re

L'
h

o
o

d

Im
p

ac
t

R
is

k 

Sc
o

re

Ref Tracking notes and monitoring

Review Month:

Target 

Implementation 

Date

Date Risk Identified
Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Mitigations & Controls

Residual Risk

7

Strong relationship with Arts Council England and stakeholders.

New five year Cultural Strategy being delveloped with tangible deliveries.

Significant cultural assets owned and run by the cultural sector.

UNESCO City of Literature status awarded and monitored.

Funding agreed with ACE until 2026 with Exeter's National Portfolio Organisations

May 2024: The restructure of RAMM's senior team is now complete and the focus is on NPO business case 

delivery. The renewal of the city's UNESCO designation is also taking place in June 24 with ECC officers 

supporting Exeter City of Literature. 

8 Delivering against the key challenges in the ‘Prosperous Local Economy’ section of the Corporate Plan.

May 2023 PfH: Corporate Services and 

City Centre     

Officer Lead:

Director Net Zero and City 

Management

3 4 12 We have worked with the University and Exeter College to enable them to take on more 

of a leading role in this area.

3 3 9 May 2024: No change.  There remains no resources, budget or officers assigned to this work area since the 

discretionary services review.

Mar-24

9

Potential Causes:

• Uncertainty around National Portfolio Organisations

• To be seen by the Arts Council as ‘Priority Place’ against levelling up schematics 

• Moving from delivery to enabling and facilitation

• Inability to create a flourishing night-time economy

• A need to balance cultural ambition with the national funding picture and local financial challenges

• A need to support Visit Exeter as a vital mechanism for promotion of our events, business and cultural offer.

• Budget savings to address the medium term financial plan

• UNESCO City of Lit working as a separate entity to the city, which is the designation holder.

Potential Impacts:

• Loss of NPO funding

• Loss of wider impact of cultural regeneration of the city.

• Inability to support night time economy

• Inability to support cultural sector

• Inability to deliver services  including RAMM, Corn Exchange, Red Coats, Custom House, Underground Passages, Box Office

• Non-renewal of UNESCO status

• Reputational impact locally, nationally and internationally

Maintaining a thriving Culture and Heritage sector

The key challenges are:

• Retention and recruitment, with some difficult-to-fill vacancies, which is stifling business growth.

• A rise in residents becoming economically inactive, particularly those in the 50+ age groups.

• Matching the learning and skills opportunities for residents with current and future job opportunities.

• Low levels of graduate retention from the University of Exeter.

• Levels of aspiration amongst our young people and limited awareness of opportunities.

Potential Causes:

Following budget reductions in April 2019 and the discretionary services review implemented in April 2023 there is no longer an economic development service or skills function.  Both discretionary services have ceased and there is no officer resource or budget to progress this corporate priority.

Potential Impacts:

The identified key challenges are not addressed.

The key challenges are:

Digital technology has, and is continuing to change the way people live, connect and work. The Covid-19 pandemic has seen resident and customer expectations shift. Digital technology has evolved significantly and for most of us, digital technologies have become an essential part of our lives and we all want easy access to joined-up information and 

efficient secure services in the palm of our hand. People increasingly expect to interact with organisations wherever they like, whenever they like, on whichever device they have and on whatever channel they choose.  With customer behaviour changing faster than ever, the task of digital transformation demands significant changes to people, 

processes and technology.

We are currently lagging behind many other Councils in our development of digital services and how we engage with our customers to improve and develop them. We have identified this as a priority to address in the One Exeter programme. We are taking a strategic approach and will be launching a draft Customer Communication and Digital 

Services Strategy consultation alongside developing a digital road map in partnership with Strata our shared IT Company and our co-owners (Teignbridge and East Devon District Councils). 

Our key challenges are the pace and scale of transformation needed in business processes; functional and organisational structures; culture; skills and resources within the Council and also within and between Strata and our partners.   

Potential Causes:

Potential Impacts:

Failure to agree and implement the required level of Corporate change will impact on the ability of the Council to deliver a balanced MTFP which requires transformational change in how are services are delivered. One Exeter requires staff working more effectively to meet increases in demand with higher costs and reduced income. Digital, integrated 

and automated services are essential to achieving the most cost-effective outcomes for customers. 

2 2

Progressing the design and delivery of a corporate Customer and Digital Strategy 

Mar-2693May 2023 PFH: Arts, Culture and 

Tourism 

Officer Lead:

Director Culture, Tourism 

and Leisure

3 1

P
age 66



May 2024

L'
h

o
o

d

Im
p

ac
t

R
is

k 

Sc
o

re

L'
h

o
o

d

Im
p

ac
t

R
is

k 

Sc
o

re

Ref Tracking notes and monitoring

Review Month:

Target 

Implementation 

Date

Date Risk Identified
Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Mitigations & Controls

Residual Risk

  24-May   4 4 16

SLT participation in cyber risk awareness and management workshop and completion of 

assurance/action plans 2 4 8 Action to be completed by October 2024  

  May-23

PFH: Corporate Services 

and City Centre                        

Officer Lead:     

Director Customer and 

Digital 4 4 16

Implementing a strategic, corporate approach to ICT, digital, automation and customer 

communication

Deeper collaboration and development of shared approaches and services with Strata, 

Teignbridge and East Devon District Councils

Implementing a single integrated transformation programme across the Council, with 

strong leadership from SMB and the Extended Leadership Team

Breaking down service silos and introducing a customer-centric culture to underpin 

functional and structural integration across the Council

Investing in updating technology resources and skills 2 4 8

The stregnthened leadership within Strata is  delivering amore agile, flexible and effective approach to 

digital and the operational and transformation needs of the  Councils within the Strata partnership. The new 

operational and strategic governace  architecture, whilst in its infacny , is already  demonstrating better 

alignment and  collaboration. Full Council approved a Digital Customer Strategy for Exeter in Dec 2023, 

detailed delviery plans are currently under production and investigation phases of key projects are 

underway.  In Dec 2023 the Strata Joint Executive Committee approved a new Busines Plan for Strata, 

designed to facilitate the delviery of the Councils transformation plans. Funding to support this work was 

included ion the budget for 24/25 approved by Counil in February 2024.  Through the One Exeter 

programme the Cross Cutting themes project reccommendations have been adopted by the CEO and 

included in the senior leadership restrucutre approvevd by Council in April 2024. MS 365 roll out  for staff 

and members will be completed by May 2024. Reseach and development work for a new data strategy and 

architecture to  underpin the Digital Customer Strategy have been completed and will be considered for 

approval by Council by  July 2024.  Priroities for delivery over the next 12 months include : 1. Expanding the 

function and capacity of the Customer Contact Centre to offer  single, digital sign on and point of contact  

for customers.  2. Increased resident engagment through  resident survey and consultation on a revised 

Corporate Plan. 3. Improve data governance, quality and access and moving digital storage to  Sharepoint.  

4. Improve productivity by re-designing business processes and using AI to undertake back office functions. 

5) Working with Strata commission  new telephony sysem (curent one at end of life) and upgrade exisitng 

Customer Relationship Management platform.   6) upgrade staff and member hardare to faciliate transfer to 

the Cloud, reduce dependancy on global desktop and  on remises serviers which in turn will support more 

agile and flexible working and inprove reliability and security. The impact of all this work, when completed 

will reduce the likelihood and the  impacts of the identified risks happening. 24-Mar

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

REPORT TO EXECUTIVE 

Date of Meeting: 4 June 2024 

Report of: Chief Executive 

Title: Members’ Allowances and Expenses Paid 2023/24 

Is this a Key Decision?  

No 

Is this an Executive or Council Function? 

Executive 

1. What is the report about? 

1.1 To report the allowances paid to Elected Members in 2023/24 

2. Recommendations:  

2.1 The Members of the Executive note the allowances paid and the expenses claimed 

by Members in 2023/24. 

3. Reasons for the recommendation: 

3.1 The Council has a statutory obligation to publish all allowances paid, and expenses 

claimed by Members each financial year. 

4. What are the resource implications including non-financial resources:  

4.1 There is an existing budget allocation to meet the amount paid in Members’ 

Allowances 

5. Section 151 Officer Comments: 

5.1 The figures set out in the report broadly align with the figures in the finance system.  

in overall terms, Members expenses came in under budget for 2023-24. 

6. What are the legal aspects?  

6.1 The Members Allowances Scheme is governed by the Local Government and 

Housing Act 1989, and in particular the details are set out in the Local Authorities 

(Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. Publication of the details contained 

in this report meet these requirements. 

7. Monitoring Officer Comments:  

7.1 Members will note that members’ allowances are usually set in accordance with the 

recommendations made by the Independent Remuneration Panel. 

Simon Copper – Deputy Monitoring Officer. 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



 

 

8. Report details: 

8.1 The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 require the 

Council to publish the total sum of each of the following allowances paid to each recipient 

in the previous financial year: 

a)  Basic allowance; 
b)  Special responsibility allowance; 
c)  Dependants’ carers’ allowance; 
d)  Travelling and subsistence allowance; 
e)  Co-optees’ allowance; and  
f)  The Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor‘s expenses allowance.  

 
8.2 A schedule of allowances made and expenses claimed for 2023/24 is attached to this 

report in Appendix A. 

8.3 The amounts paid are in accordance with the Scheme of Member’s Allowance as 

agreed by Council on 12 December 2023, which accepted the recommendations of the 

Independent Remuneration Panel on Members’ Allowances, which included approval of 

the scheme for 2024/25.  

8.4 The report included the detail of remuneration paid for the Council Housing and 

Development Advisory Board, which is drawn separately from the Housing Revenue 

Account. 

9. How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 

• Ensuring a well-run Council. 

• To invoke public confidence that the Council’s operation in relation to Members are 
transparent. 

10. What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 

10.1 The risks are reduced by the publication of this annual report. 

11. Equality Act 2010 (The Act)  

11.1 Under the Act’s Public Sector Equalities Duty, decision makers are required to 

consider the need to: 

• eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited conduct; 

• advance equality by encouraging participation, removing disadvantage, taking 

account of disabilities and meeting people’s needs; and 

• foster good relations between people by tackling prejudice and promoting 

understanding. 

11.2 In order to comply with the general duty authorities must assess the impact on 

equality of decisions, policies and practices.  These duties do not prevent the authority 

from reducing services where necessary, but they offer a way of developing proposals 

that consider the impacts on all members of the community. 

11.3  In making decisions the authority must take into account the potential impact of that 

decision in relation to age, disability, race/ethnicity (includes Gypsies and Travellers), sex 

and gender, gender identity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, pregnant women and 

Page 70



 

 

new and breastfeeding mothers, marriage and civil partnership status in coming to a 

decision. 

11.4 In recommending this proposal no potential impact has been identified on people 

with protected characteristics as determined by the Act because the report is for 

information. 

12. Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:   

12.1 There are no direct carbon/environmental impacts arising from the 

recommendations. 

13. Are there any other options? 

13.1 None 

 
Chief Executive, Bindu Arjoon 
 
Author: Mark Devin, Democratic Services Manager 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 

 
None 
 
Contact for enquires:  
Democratic Services (Committees) 
Room 4.36 
01392 265115 
 
 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Initial Councillor 

Surname

Basic 

Allowance

£

Special 

Responsibility 

Allowances

£

Special 

Responsibility 

Allowances

£

Comments Conferenc

e/Travel / 

Subsistenc

e 

Expense 

Carers

£

Sub Total

£

A Fullam £5,834.10 £5,834.10
A Ghusain £685.33 £1,199.25 Portfolio Holder £1,884.58
A Jobson £6,537.00 £3,267.96 Group Leader £9,804.96
A Ketchin £5,816.52 £5,816.52

A Leadbetter £6,537.00
£412.89

Deputy Chair of 

Scrutiny Committee
£6,949.89

A Sheridan £5,834.10 £5,834.10
A Sparling £6,537.00 £6,537.00

A Wardle £6,537.00 £3,267.96

Chair of Audit & 

Governance
£9,804.96

B Denning £6,537.00 £11,439.00 Portfolio Holder £17,976.00
C Bennett £6,537.00 £83.20 £6,620.20

C

Rees 

Stephan £6,537.00 £2,855.07

Deputy Chair of 

Scrutiny Committee
£9,392.07

D Harvey £6,537.00 £6,537.00
D Moore £6,537.00 £1,961.52 Group Leader £8,498.52
D Wood £6,537.00 £11,439.00 Portfolio Holder £17,976.00
E Morse £6,255.84 £10,947.00 Portfolio Holder £17,202.84
H Packham £685.33 £685.33
J Ellis-Jones £6,537.00 £6,537.00
J Miller £5,798.95 £5,798.95
J Moore £685.33 £685.33
J Parkhouse £6,537.00 £11,439.00 Portfolio Holder £17,976.00
K Mitchell £6,537.00 £5,958.92 Lord Mayor £12,495.92
L Wright £6,537.00 £11,439.00 Portfolio Holder £576.95 £18,552.95
M Asvachin £6,537.00 £4,282.66 Licensing Chair £10,819.66

M Mitchell £6,537.00 £3,267.96

Deputy Chair of 

Scrutiny Committee £41.60
£9,846.56

M Pearce £6,537.00 £11,439.00 Portfolio Holder £17,976.00
M Snow £6,537.00 £6,537.00
M Vizard £6,537.00 £6,537.00 Chair of Scrutiny £13,074.00
M Williams £5,851.67 £5,851.67

N Allcock £6,537.00 £685.22 £1,291.42

Chair of Council 

housing & 

Development 

Advisory Board & 

Member Champion

£8,513.64

P Bialyk £6,537.00 £21,245.04 Leader £187.45 £27,969.49
P Holland £6,657.90 £6,657.90

P Knott £6,537.00
£5,711.09

Chair of Planning 

Committee
£12,248.09

P Oliver £685.33 £685.33
R Branston £6,537.00 £6,537.00

R Foale £6,537.00
£9,993.75 £619.34

Portfolio Holder & 

Licensing Chair 
£17,150.09

As required by the Local Authorities (Members) 2003 Regulations 2003 the total amount of Basic, Special Responsibility and 

Travel & Subsistence Allowances paid to each Member (including part payment to those Members who ceased to be Councillors 

during the year) for the year ending 31 March 2024 are given below. For details of the Special Responsibility Allowances please 

refer to the Council's website - www.exeter.gov.uk

Page 73



Initial Councillor 

Surname

Basic 

Allowance

£

Special 

Responsibility 

Allowances

£

Special 

Responsibility 

Allowances

£

Comments Conferenc

e/Travel / 

Subsistenc

e 

Expense 

Carers

£

Sub Total

£

R Hannaford £6,537.00

£1,856.53 £825.91

Chair of Council 

Housing & 

Development 

Advisory Board (part 

yr) & Chair of 

Scrutiny(part yr)

£9,219.44

R Newby £685.33 £206.46 Deputy Lord Mayor £891.79

R Sutton £685.33 £342.61

Deputy Chair of 

Planning Committee £138.40
£1,166.34

R Williams £6,537.00 £11,439.00 Portfolio Holder £17,976.00
S Patrick £5,816.52 £5,816.52
T Read £6,537.00 £1,427.59 Deputy Lord Mayor £7,964.59
Y Atkinson £6,537.00 £5,711.09 Chair of Scrutiny £12,248.09
Y Henson £685.33 £825.91 Lord Mayor £1,511.24
Z Lights £6,537.00 £1,634.04 Member Champion £225.22 £8,396.26
S Warwick £6,537.00 £6,537.00
J Begley £5,834.10 £5,834.10

TOTAL £254,607.01 £156,520.43 £8,447.76 £1,252.82 £0.00 £420,828.02

Page 74



REPORT TO EXECUTIVE 
Date of Meeting: 04 June 2024 

Report of: Director, Net Zero and City Management 

Title: Exeter Port Authority: The role of the Duty Holder 

Is this a Key Decision?  

No 

Is this an Executive or Council Function? 

Executive 

1. What is the report about? 

1.1 Establishing the role of the Duty Holder for the Port of Exeter  

2. Recommendations:  

That the Executive agrees to: 

2.1 undertake the role of the Duty Holder for the Port of Exeter in accordance with the 

Port Marine Safety Code; and 

2.2 undertake the required training to fulfil the role. 

3. Reasons for the recommendation: 

3.1 The Duty Holder is responsible for ensuring that the organisation complies with the 

Department for Transport’s Port Marine Safety Code (PMSC).  Our ambition to achieve 

compliance with the PMSC and to demonstrate best practice in harbour management, 

was previously approved at Executive (10/03/20) and Council (21/04/20). 

4. What are the resource implications including non financial resources 

4.1 It is anticipated that meetings would be quarterly and there would be two half-day 

training courses to complete, to gain familiarity with the PMSC and the role of the Duty 

Holder. 

4.2 It is also advised that members of the Executive undertake a familiarisation visit with 

the harbour team to gain an understanding of the work they do, and the estuary and 

surrounding environment.   

5. Section 151 Officer comments: 

5.1 There are no financial implications contained in this report. 

6. What are the legal aspects? 

6.1 A harbour is defined by the Harbours Act 1964 as any natural or artificial harbour, any 

port, haven, estuary, tidal or other river or inland waterway navigated by sea going ships.  

Harbour authorities are responsible for the management and running of the harbour.   

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



6.2 Exeter City Council are the statutory Harbour Authority (HA) for the Port of Exeter and 

Canal.   

7. Monitoring Officer’s comments: 

This report sets out the necessity of putting in place more robust arrangements 

concerning the role of the Duty Holder in order to demonstrate best practice in harbour 

management and to aim to ensure a robust approach to safe marine operations in 

accordance with the Port Marine Safety Code. The Deputy Monitoring Officer has no 

additional comments. 

Simon Copper – Deputy Monitoring Officer. 

8. Report details: 

8.1 Exeter City Council is the Statutory Harbour Authority for the Port of Exeter and the 

Canal.  The area over which we are the Harbour Authority includes the Exe Estuary from 

Blackaller Weir (outside Mill on the Exe) to the ‘Safe Water Mark’, one mile out to sea off 

Exmouth beach including the Exeter Ship Canal. 

Our responsibilities as HA include:- 

a) Being responsible for safety of navigation; 

b) Providing and maintaining lights and buoys to ensure safe navigation (there are over 

50 navigation aids in the estuary, which we have provided and maintain); 

c) Exercising functions with regard to nature conservation and other environmental 

considerations; 

d) Conserving the harbour so that it is reasonably fit for use as a port and in such 

condition for a vessel to utilise it safely; 

e) Complying with the Port Marine Safety Code; 

f) Complying with Environmental Protection legislation; 

g) Keeping the canal open, maintained, and navigable for commercial vessels. 

This note focuses on the Port Marine Safety Code and the roles identified within the code. 

8.2 What is the Port Marine Safety Code (PMSC) 

8.2.1 The PMSC published by the Department for Transport, offers a national standard 

for port safety in the UK with the aim of improving “safety for those who use or work in 

ports, their ships, passengers, cargoes, and the environment".  

8.2.2 Although the PMSC is not a statutory instrument, all Harbour Authorities are 

expected to comply, and failure to do so can lead to prosecution under other relevant 

legislation such as the Merchant Shipping and the Health and Safety at Work legislation. 

8.2.3 Exeter City Council committed to achieving full compliance with the PMSC at 

Executive (10/03/20) and Council (21/04/20) and we are starting the process of applying 

for a Harbour Revision Order, which will bring us a large way towards compliance. 

8.3 PMSC Compliance and the Duty Holder 

8.3.1 The PMSC introduces two main roles for achieving compliance with the code. They 

are the ‘Duty Holder’ and the ‘Designated Person’.  The PMSC is primarily intended for 

Page 76



the ‘Duty Holder’, which will, for most organisations, mean those members of the 

organisation, both individually and collectively, who are ultimately responsible for marine 

safety. 

8.3.2 The Port Marine Safety Code (‘PMSC’) requires the appointment of a ‘Duty Holder’.  

Those people who are appointed as the ‘Duty Holder’ are individually and collectively 

accountable for compliance with the PMSC and their performance in ensuring safe 

marine operations in the harbour and its approaches.  The PMSC itself is best practice 

guidance not a legally binding obligation.  However, as set out in the PMSC, failure to 

comply with the PMSC can lead to prosecution, for example under section 3 of the Health 

and Safety at Work Act 1974.  All persons appointed by the Council to the role of Duty 

Holder are undertaking the position in the course of their role for the Council and must act 

with the same level of care and good faith as they do in other activities they undertake for 

the Council.  If the Council appoint an experienced external ‘Designated Person’ (see 

paragraph 8.5), and then follow their recommendations following audit to ensure 

compliance with the PMSC, then that provides a significant safeguard that the Duty 

Holder will act in compliance with the PMSC (the Designated Person will provide 

independent confirmation that the Council is complying with the PMSC or what it needs to 

do to become compliant).  On behalf of their Organisation, the Duty Holder should be able 

to set policy and approve finances. Typically, it is up to the Organisation to evaluate who 

is best placed to provide the Duty Holder function and where this responsibility lies.  The 

Duty Holder cannot assign or delegate its accountability for compliance with the Code 

8.3.3 In commercial ports, the responsibility lies with the senior management team but in 

municipal ports, there are a number of differing models.  They are: 

• One a single person (elected member or senior manager); 

• the Executive committee; 

• a separate committee of elected members; or 

• full council.     

8.3.4 Recent training from Associated British Ports highlighted that a single person is not 

considered a robust model since the responsibility cannot be delegated. In addition 

individuals do not usually have the power to set budgets or policy.   

8.3.5 Most typically in municipal ports, the Duty Holder role sits either with the Executive 

or Full Council (depending on how the statutory harbour function is held within the 

Council).   

8.3.6 For the Port of Exeter, our opinion is that the Duty Holder role, would be best placed 

at the Executive Committee to give maximum oversight. 

8.4 What are the responsibilities of the Duty Holder? 

8.4.1 The duty holder is responsible for ensuring that the organisation complies with the 

Code. In order to do that they should:  

• be aware of the organisation’s powers and duties related to marine safety; 

Page 77



• ensure that a suitable Marine Safety Management System (MSMS), which employs 

formal safety assessment techniques, is in place (this is already in place for Exeter 

Harbour); 

• appoint a suitable ‘designated person’ (DP) to monitor and report the effectiveness of 

the MSMS and provide independent advice on matters of marine safety; 

• appoint competent people to manage marine safety (competent team already in 

place); 

• ensure that the management of marine safety continuously improves by publishing a 

marine safety plan and reporting performance against the objectives and targets set 

(underway); and 

• report compliance with the Code to the MCA every 3 years (completed by the 

harbour team and the DP). 

8.4.2 It is anticipated that meetings would be no more than quarterly and that two half-day 

training courses, to gain familiarity with the PMSC and the role of the Duty Holder would 

be sufficient for the role. 

8.4.3 It is also advised that members of the Executive undertake a familiarisation visit with 

the harbour team to gain an understanding of the work they do, and the estuary and 

surrounding environment.   

8.5 Who is the Designated Person? 

8.5.1 The DP is a paid independent adviser who provides assurance and advice directly 

to the Duty Holder. They are effectively working directly for the Duty Holder.  Their main 

responsibility is to determine, through assessment and audit, the effectiveness of the 

Marine Safety Management System which is a large part of the PMSC. 

8.5.2 The DP must be independent and have a thorough knowledge and understanding of 

the requirements of the PMSC (and supporting Guide to Good Practice) and associated 

port and marine legislation.  The role of the DP does not obscure the accountability of the 

Duty Holder. 

8.5.3 The DP will assist, when required, to assess and audit our compliance against the 

code and report back to the Duty Holder.  The DP will be appointed by the Duty Holder 

following a transparent process. 

9. How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 

9.1 The role of Duty Holder directly contributes to a well-run council by exhibiting good 

governance, making sure that assets are well managed and the harbour is a safe place 

for all users. 

10. What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 

10.1 Should ECC fail to appoint a Duty Holder then we will be unable to comply with the 

PMSC.   It is one of the core basic requirements of the Code. The proposals in this report 

seek to reduce the risks of non-compliance with the PMSC.  

The best way to reduce the risk is to appoint an appropriate Duty Holder  as a matter of 

priority.   

Page 78



11. Equality Act 2010 (The Act)  

11.1 Under the Act’s Public Sector Equalities Duty, decision makers are required to 

consider the need to: 

• eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other prohibited conduct; 

• advance equality by encouraging participation, removing disadvantage, taking 

account of disabilities and meeting people’s needs; and 

• foster good relations between people by tackling prejudice and promoting 

understanding. 

11.2 In order to comply with the general duty authorities must assess the impact on 

equality of decisions, policies, and practices.  These duties do not prevent the authority 

from reducing services where necessary, but they offer a way of developing proposals 

that consider the impacts on all members of the community. 

11.3 In making decisions the authority must take into account the potential impact of that 

decision in relation to age, disability, race/ethnicity (includes Gypsies and Travellers), sex 

and gender, gender identity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, pregnant women and 

new and breastfeeding mothers, marriage, and civil partnership status in coming to a 

decision. 

11.4 In recommending this proposal no potential impact has been identified on people 

with protected characteristics as determined by the Act because this is simply to decide 

where the role of Duty Holder sits within the Council. 

12. Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:   

12.1 There are no direct carbon or environmental impacts arising from the 

recommendations. 

13. Are there any other options? 

13.1 There are a number of other choices for who should be the duty holder discussed in 

section 8.3.3. These alternatives either do not give adequate powers or responsibility to 

the Duty Holder or they are not a robust enough provision since the responsibility cannot 

be delegated. 

Director, Net Zero and City Management, David Bartram 

Author: David Bartram 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 

Background papers used in compiling this report:- 

None 

 
Contact for enquires:  
Democratic Services (Committees) 
Room 4.36 
01392 265275 
 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO EXECUTIVE 
Date of Meeting: 4 June 2024 

Report of: Director for Net Zero Exeter & City Management 

Title: Parking Tariffs 2024 

Is this a Key Decision?  

Yes 

Is this an Executive or Council Function? 

Executive 

1. What is the report about? 

1.1 To make amendments under the Parking Places Order to improve the regulation of 

Council car parks and to support the aims of reducing traffic congestion, supporting the 

Medium-Term Financial Plan, and addressing the goal of Exeter net zero by 2030. 

2. Recommendations:  

2.1 To amend the Car Park Places Order 2014 as follows: 

a) Increase car parking charges at all car parks by 5%; 

b) Reduce car parking charges on a Sunday by 25%; 

c) Re-introduce 1hr parking for city centre car parks located in Zone 2; 

d) Amend the opening and closing hours at the John Lewis car park to 8.00am - 

midnight; 

e) Add the following new car parks to the Parking Places Order in accordance with the 

plans at Appendix 2: 

a. Central Zone  

i. Paris Street Car Park (Old Bus Station site) 

b. Zone 3 

i. Pinhoe Railway Station Car Park; 

ii. Bridge Road Car Park; 

iii. Riverside Leisure Centre; 

iv. Wonford Sports Centre. 

f) To consult with nearby residents on a proposal to introduce residential car parking 

after 6.00pm at Belmont Road Car Park; 

g) Increase the cost of seasonal, residential, and business parking permits as set out in 

this report; and 

h) £75,000 of the income achieved from Car Parks to be set aside for maintenance, 

improvements, and carbon reduction measures to city centre car parks. 

Page 81

Agenda Item 10



3. Reasons for the recommendation: 

3.1 To support the delivery of the City Council’s Corporate Plan, in supporting a Balanced 

Budget and a Net Zero Carbon City.  

3.2 To address the trading and economic challenges businesses are facing within the city 

centre. 

4. What are the resource implications including non financial resources 

4.1 The proposed changes will support the work undertaken during the budget to align 

the income budget with the reduction in usage. 

4.2 There will be a small cost for software upgrades to pay and display machines, as well 

as updates to car park welcome and notice boards, this will be met from within existing 

revenue budgets. There will be a small amount of staff time to implement the proposals, 

working with suppliers of the payment machines and pay by phone.  

4.3 There will be a cost to convert the free car parks referred to in the recommendations 

at 2.1 to chargeable car parks, some will be significant, some will be minor. Any minor 

costs will be met from existing budgets, with any significant costs reported separately to 

Executive once they have been determined. 

5. Section 151 Officer comments: 

5.1 It is important to note that the tickets sales in the report are based on 2022-23 usage 

not 2023-24.  As Members are aware, there was a reduction in income during 2023-24 

and this will be the base on which these increases are made.  The Council received 

£9.4m in 2023-24 and have set a budget of £9.5m for 2024-25.  The proposals will 

contribute to delivering the budget. 

6. What are the legal aspects? 

6.1 In order to bring the proposed changes into effect the Council must comply with the 

procedural requirements of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, including giving notice 

of the proposed changes and considering any representations received during the 

consultation period. 

7. Monitoring Officer’s comments: 

7.1 Please see the legal implications set out above. The Deputy Monitoring Officer has no 

additional comments. 

Simon Copper – Deputy Monitoring Officer. 

8. Report details: 

8.1 The City Council has declared a climate emergency and are committed to working 

towards net zero for the city and the City Council by 2030. In 2021 on-road transportation 

contributed 100,456 tco2 to city wide carbon emissions (see table in 12.2), an area that 

the City Council does not directly control but can encourage people to visit the city by 

using alternative forms of transport. The carbon emissions  

Page 82



equate to a 13.49% increase on the previous year of 2020, which is attributed to Covid 

restrictions being lifted and people returning to work and shopping in the city.  

 

8.2 Discussions are ongoing with Devon County Council on changes that can be made to 

highway infrastructure across Exeter to reduce on-road transportation emissions. The 

Terms of Reference of the City Council’s Transport Working Group are being amended to 

directly relate to what is within the remit of the City Council in relation to transport.  

8.3 The number of car park tickets sold decreased by 1.44% from 1,984,058 in 2022 to 

1,955,441 in 2023 (section 12.1). This decrease aligns with a slight reduction in footfall 

across the city centre. The draft City Centre Strategy is currently being reviewed, to 

address changes and challenges effecting the city centre and businesses located here.  

8.4 Since October 2023, monthly footfall has seen a reduction on the same period as the 

previous year – i.e., comparing September to September. Monthly data can be seen in 

Appendix 1.  

8.5 There are some future changes proposed within the car parking estate. These 

changes were the subject of a report to Executive on 29 November 2022 - ‘Mary Arches 

Street Car Park Re-development’.  

8.6 The management of car parks is within the remit of the Service Lead for Net Zero & 

Business. The Service Lead is able to review car parking provision and suggest changes 

to address the issue of climate change and to use spare capacity to support the medium-

term financial plan.  

8.7 A number of the proposals in this report are proposed to support the City Centre 

economy and the business community. InExeter and Exeter Chamber have provided 

feedback that city centre businesses are finding trading conditions incredibly challenging, 

with some customers opting not to visit the city centre.  

8.8 The following proposals are recommended within this report: 

• Increase car parking charging prices by 5% as set out in the table below: 

CENTRAL 2023 5% Round up 
Number of tickets 

sold 2022/23   

 Mon - Sun, 8am - 10pm Income Projection with 5% increase  

 -         

2hrs £4.50 £4.73 £4.80 577,940 £2,774,112.00 

3hrs £5.60 £5.88 £5.90 265,585 £1,566,951.50 

4hrs £6.70 £7.04 £7.00 135,521 £948,647.00 

5hrs £7.80 £8.19 £8.20 63,117 £517,559.40 

6hrs £8.90 £9.35 £9.40 28,930 £271,942.00 

7hrs £10.00 £10.50 £10.50 36,532 £383,586.00 

all day £18.00 £18.90 £19.00 29,782 £565,858.00 

       1,137,407 £7,028,655.90 

          

Page 83



Reduce Sunday city centre car park charging by 25% for Central, Zone 1 and Zone 

2 car parks 

Sunday remains the quietest day within the City Centre from a car parking and footfall 

point of view, with Saturday being the busiest. It is proposed to amend Sunday charging 

to encourage and incentivise visitors and shoppers to visit the city on a Sunday, to reduce 

congestion and peak usage on a Saturday.  

Central Car Parks 

Bampfylde Street Car Park / Guildhall Car Park / John Lewis Car Park / King William 

Street Car Park / Magdalen Road Car Park / Magdalen Street Car Park / Mary Arches 

ZONE 1 2023 5% Round Up 
Number of tickets 

sold 2022/23 Income Projection with 5% increase  

 Mon - Sun, 8am - 10pm (Matthews Hall 8am - 6pm)   

 -         

2hrs £3.40 £3.57 £3.60 213,259 £767,732.40 

3hrs £4.50 £4.73 £4.80 97,558 £468,278.40 

4hrs £5.60 £5.88 £5.90 49,639 £292,870.10 

5hrs £6.70 £7.04 £7.00 22,219 £155,533.00 

6hrs £7.80 £8.19 £8.20 11,629 £95,357.80 

7hrs £8.90 £9.35 £9.40 15,214 £143,011.60 

all day £13.00 £13.65 £14.00 19,946 £279,244.00 

       429,464 £2,202,027.30 

          

ZONE 2 2023 5% Round up 
Number of tickets 

sold 2022/23 Income Projection with 5% increase  

 Mon - Sun, 8am - 6pm   

1hr     £1.80 55,328.0 £99,590.40 

2hrs £3.40 £3.57 £3.60 140,676 £506,433.60 

3hrs £4.50 £4.73 £4.80 53,507 £256,833.60 

4hrs £5.60 £5.88 £5.90 25,720 £151,748.00 

5hrs £6.70 £7.04 £7.00 16,823 £117,761.00 

all day £11.00 £11.55 £12.00 16,410 £196,920.00 

       253,136 £1,229,696.20 

          

ZONE 3 2023 5% Round up 
Number of tickets 

sold 2022/23 Income Projection with 5% increase  

 Mon - Sun, 8am - 6pm   

1hr     £1.05 31,534 £62,624.10 

2hrs £2.00 £2.10 £2.10 59,642 £125,248.20 

3hrs £3.00 £3.15 £3.20 21,803 £69,769.60 

4hrs £4.00 £4.20 £4.20 12,642 £53,096.40 

all day £5.00 £5.25 £5.50 41,347 £227,408.50 

       135,434 £475,522.70 

           

Coaches £10.00 £10.50 £10.50 1,085 £11,392.50 

          

Page 84



Street Car Park (ground level) / Mary Arches Street Car Park (Multi-Storey) / Princesshay 

2 / Princesshay 3 / Smythen Street 

 Current With 5% 
inflationary 

increase 

Proposed 
fee (25% 

reduction) 

2 hrs £4.50 £4.80 £3.60 

3 hrs £5.60 £5.90 £4.40 

4 hrs £6.70 £7.00 £5.20 

5 hrs £7.80 £8.20 £6.10 

6 hrs £8.90 £9.40 £7.00 

7 hrs £10.00 £10.50 £7.90 

All day £18.00 £19.00 £14.20 

 

Zone 1 Car Parks 

Bartholomew Terrace Car Park / Harlequins Car Park / Howell Road Car Park / Triangle 

Car Park 

 Current With 5% 
inflationary 

increase 

Proposed fee 
(25% 

reduction) 

2hrs £3.40 £3.60 £2.70 

3 hrs £4.50 £4.80 £3.60 

4hrs £5.60 £5.90 £4.40 

5hrs £6.70 £7.00 £5.20 

6hrs £7.80 £8.20 £6.10 

7hrs £8.90 £9.40 £7.00 

All day £13.00 £14.00 £10.50 

 

Zone 2 

Belmont Road Car park / Bystock Terrace Car Park / Cathedral & Quay Car park / Parr 

Street Car Park / Richmond Road Car Park 

 Current With 5% 
inflationary 

increase 

Proposed fee 
(25% 

reduction) 

1hr - £2.00 £2.00 

2hrs £3.40 £3.60 £2.70 

3hrs £4.50 £4.80 £3.60 

4hrs £5.60 £5.90 £4.40 

5hrs £6.70 £7.00 £5.20 

All day £13.00 £12.00 £9.00 

 

• Re-introduce 1hr parking for city centre car parks located in Zone 2 

Re-introduce the 1hr charging fee of £2.00 in Zone 2 car parks that are located within the 

City Centre: Belmond Road Car Park, Bystock Terrace Car Park, Cathedral & Quay Car 

Park, Parr Street Car Park, and Richmond Road Car Park 

Page 85



The re-introduction is to support the business community, to enable their customers to 

attend appointments and for those that shop online and opt for Click & Collect.  

 

• Amend the time John Lewis car park is open: 

Amendment to the opening of John Lewis Car Park 

Car Park Current Proposed 

John Lewis Car Park 8.00am – 9.45pm 
Monday – Sunday  

8.00am – midnight 
Monday – Sunday  

 

• Include new car parks in the Parking Places Order: 

o Central Zone 

▪ Old Bus Station site: to be called Paris Street Car Park 

 

o Zone 3 

▪ Bridge Road Car Park: to be called Bridge Road Car Park; 

▪ Pinhoe Train Station Car Park: to be called Pinhoe Railway Station; 

▪ Riverside Leisure Centre: to be called Riverside Leisure Centre Car Park; 

▪ Wonford Sports Centre: to be called Wonford Sports Centre Car Park 

The reason for introducing parking fees and to enable enforcement within the above car 

parks, is to make use of a temporary building site until a permanent use is sought and 

ensure the other car park sites listed are used by their intended customer base.  

A new permit will be introduced for Exeter Leisure Members for free or discounted use, 

for Riverside Leisure Centre and Wonford Sports Centre. 

• To consult with nearby residents on a proposal to introduce residential car 

parking after 6.00pm at Belmont Road Car Park 

There have been ongoing issues and complaints with students and Air B&B guests using 

Belmont Road Car Park. Consult with nearby residents to make Belmont Road car park 

residential only after 6pm, the same as Richmond Road Car Park. If residents agree they 

would like this car park as a dedicated car park to park for their use on an evening, this 

would result in residents having to buy a residential parking permit for £360 per annum. 

Which residents that would be eligible for the parking permit would form park of the 

consultation. Once the consultation has taken place (which will follow the City Council’s 

Consultation Charter), the outcome will be the subject of a further report to Executive. 

• Increase the cost to purchase a seasonal, residential, and business parking 

permit by 5% 

Seasonal Parking Permit 2023 2024 

1 month £202.00 £212.00 

2 months £403.00 £423.00 

3 months £606.00 £635.00 

6 months £1,210.00 £1,270.00 

Page 86



12 months £2,149.00 £2,256.00 

 

As agreed in the Parking Tariffs 2023 committee report to Executive 7 February 

2023 - for EXISTING permit holders, increase the fee to purchase a discounted 

business and residential parking permit for the next 4 years. 

 Current Proposed 
2024/25 

Proposed 
2025/26 

Proposed 
2026/27 

Business Annual Season Ticket 
Bartholomew Terrace 

£350 £450 £550 £650 

Business Annual Season Ticket 
Cathedral & Quay 

£850 £950 £1,050 £1,150 

Residential Annual Season Ticket 
Richmond Road 
Bartholomew Terrace 
Cathedral & Quay 
Okehampton Street 
Gordons Place 
Belmont Road (if agreed as part of the 
consultation) 

£200 £250 £300 £350 

 

For NEW permit holders, increase the cost to purchase a permit by 5% 

 Current Proposed  

Business Annual Season Ticket  
Bartholomew Terrace 

£650 £680 

Business Annual Season Ticket 
Cathedral & Quay 

£1,150 £1,200 

Residential Annual Season Ticket 
Richmond Road 
Bartholomew Terrace 
Cathedral & Quay 
Okehampton Street 
Gordons Place 
Belmont Road (if agreed as part of the consultation) 

£350 £360 

 

• £75,000 of the income achieved from Car Parks to be set aside for 

maintenance, improvements, and carbon reduction measures to city centre car 

parks. 

Many of our car parks suffer from severe anti-social behaviour. It is proposed to earmark 

£75,000 from the income raised to address the look and feel of city centre car parks to 

reduce anti-social behaviour so the City Council can provide a premium service to its 

customers.  

Some of the income will also be applied in reducing carbon emissions throughout the car 

park estate. 

9. How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 

9.1 The recommendations within this report support a number of Corporate Priorities: 

Page 87



• Healthy & Active City: nudging those that are able to, commute into Exeter via active 

and or sustainable travel means; 

• Net Zero Carbon City: changes in tariffs, nudging customers to park outside of the 

immediate city centre and to travel into the city by alternative active and or 

sustainable travel means; and 

• A Balanced Budget: car park income enables the City Council to deliver a wide range 

of services for residents, businesses, and visitors to the city. 

10. What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 

10.1 It is widely recognised that the City Council relies heavily on car park income in 

order to fund many services across the city, which supports the delivery of the City 

Council’s Corporate Plan. From the recommendations within this report, the number of 

vehicles using City Council car parks may reduce overtime.  

10.2 Medium to long term consideration needs to be given as to how to replace a 

potential reduction in car park income, by using underutilised car park to generate other 

revenue streams.  

10.3 There is a potential that customers of City Centre car parks opt not to pay for parking 

on some of the days they park. The car park team will put a greater focus on parking 

enforcement to reduce that risk. 

11. Equality Act 2010 (The Act)  

11.1 In recommending proposals within this report, potential impacts have been identified 

on people with protected characteristics as determined by the Act and an Equalities 

Impact Assessment has been included in the background papers for Members’ attention. 

11.2 Changes to car park charges and parking permits may have a negative impact on 

those working in the city centre. This may have a detrimental impact on affordability for 

young people working in entry-level positions, in sectors such as retail, hospitality and the 

social care in the city centre. 

12. Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:   

12.1 As in previous years, there is the expectation the number of people parking in City 

Council car parks will reduce, as commuters’ transition to more sustainable forms of 

transport. The table below shows the total number of car park tickets sold across the 

whole estate, regardless of how they pay – cash, credit card or pay by phone. Income 

levels have been maintained, whilst the number of car park tickets sold has reduced – an 

aspiration of previous tariff changes. During 2020 and 2021 covid restrictions were in 

place, with employees working from home and shopping locally or online; which resulted 

in reduced use of City Council car parks.  

Number of car park tickets sold 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 

1,955,441 1,984,058 1,560,071 1,212,392 2,254,431 2,403,162 2,581,781 

 

Page 88



12.2 The chart below shows the latest available data (January 2023) on carbon emissions 

(output t CO2e) for the City of Exeter for on-road transportation, as a whole. The dramatic 

drop in 2020 aligns with national covid restrictions and tallies with the data above. There 

is an expectation that there will be a bounce back for 2021 and 2022, as covid restrictions 

were removed. Train strikes and challenges within the local bus network may impact on 

the on-road transportation emissions, as well as the number of people using City Council 

car parks. 

 

2021 Devon Greenhouse Gas Inventory for SWEEG – Centre for Energy & the Environment, 

University of Exeter 

12.3 From the additional £75,000 income set aside for maintenance and improvements, 

this will be focused on improving the look and feel of car parks located within the Central 

Zone to reduce anti-social behaviour, as well as reducing carbon emissions from the car 

park service. 

12.4 The Road Map to a carbon neutral Exeter recognises that we have to reduce the 

dominance of cars. The document states “To achieve a modal shift away from high-

carbon forms of transport it is vital to implement options that are cheaper, quicker, and 

more convenient that private car ownership. It recognises that a Net Zero Exeter will have 

cleaner, more efficient public transport, and reduced dominance of cars in the city centre, 

making more attractive public spaces.” It further recognises the city centre will need to be 

free from non-essential motorised vehicles, providing vibrant public spaces and freeing up 

land currently used for driving and parking.  

12.5 The parking tariff structure and the availability of car parking is an important leaver in 

moving to a carbon neutral city.  

13. Are there any other options? 

13.1 There is the option of not making any changes to the car park estate, which would 

result in other services having to make changes to achieve additional income or reduce 

service delivery. 

 

Page 89



Director for Net Zero Exeter & City Management, David Bartram 

Author: Victoria Hatfield, Service Lead Net Zero & Business 

 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 

Background papers used in compiling this report:- 

None 

Contact for enquires:  
Democratic Services (Committees) 
Room 4.36 
01392 265275 
 

Page 90



APPENDIX 1 
 
Saturday & Sunday car parking 

 

 
 

Sunday 
ticket sales 

Central Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Total 

Apr-22 12,378  2,860 2,645 1,486 19,369 

May-22 22,888  4,519 3,426 1,865 32,698 

Jun-22 13,978  3,117 3,839 2,184 23,118 

Jul-22 32,519  3,206 3,978 2,378 42,081 

Aug-22 14,460  3,611 3,069 1,797 22,937 

Sep-22 14,311  4,346 3,110 1,646 23,413 

Oct-22 17,470  4,391 2,998 1,912 26,771 

Nov-22 17,029  4,644 2,579 1,742 25,994 

Dec-22 22,852  5,518 2,135 881 31,386 

Jan-23 15,039  3,538 2,541 1,508 22,626 

Feb-23 13,081  3,068 2,580 1,607 20,336 

Mar-23 26,856  4,178 2,661 1,388 35,083 

Saturday 
ticket sales 

Central Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Total 

Apr-22 19,183 5,771 3,468 3,495 31,917 

May-22 17,411 4,595 3,590 2,155 27,751 

Jun-22 15,564 4,486 5,268 2,843 28,161 

Jul-22 28,755 3,307 6,548 3,996 42,606 

Aug-22 17,543 4417 2,747 2,196 26,903 

Sep-22 17,594 5,409 4,140 2,809 29,952 

Oct-22 21,913 6,047 4,318 3,452 35,730 

Nov-22 19,475 6,385 3,705 2,510 32,075 

Dec-22 26,398 7,665 3,925 2,031 40,019 

Jan-23 12,746 5,802 3,000 1,833 23,381 

Feb-23 13,307 5,901 3,298 2,047 24,553 

Mar-23 19,110 6,822 3,317 1,932 31,181 

Apr-23 18,547 6,744 4,329 2,513 32,133 

May-23 15,150 4,833 3,346 1,597 24,926 

Jun-23 14,516 4,220 4,152 4,244 27,132 

Jul-23 21,510 7,797 5,172 2,552 37,031 

Aug-23 17,927 5,900 4,027 2,151 30,005 

Sep-23 17,533 5,996 4,784 2,707 31,020 

Oct-23 18,378 6,486 3,502 2,286 30,652 

Nov-23 20,161 8,016 3,762 2,347 34,286 

Dec-23 23,708 8,930 4,036 2,568 39,242 

Jan-24 15,174 5,650 3,168 2,410 26,402 

Feb-24 15,442 5,870 3,299 2,408 27,019 

Mar-24 16,900 6,079 4,258 2,979 30,216 

Apr-24 
    

0 

May-24 
    

0 

Page 91



Apr-23 15,740  4,349 3,125 1,686 24,900 

May-23 14,186  3,501 2,831 1,363 21,881 

Jun-23 14,525  3,185 3,597 2,163 23,470 

Jul-23 17,093  4,768 3,899 1,897 27,657 

Aug-23 15,775  2,952 2,818 1,683 23,228 

Sep-23 14,269  3,361 2,852 1,394 21,876 

Oct-23 18,807  3,561 3,237 2,243 27,848 

Nov-23 18,100  4,926 2,589 1,537 27,152 

Dec-23 21,305  5,633 3,076 1,700 31,714 

Jan-24 13,164  2,998 2,556 1,795 20,513 

Feb-24 14,751  3,243 2,507 1,724 22,225 

Mar-24 14,581  3,864 3,130 2,348 23,923 

Apr-24         0 

May-24         0 

 
 
City Centre Footfall 
 
May 2023 

 
 
June 2023 

 
 
July 2023 

Page 92



 
 
August 2023 

 
 
September 2023 

 
 
October 2023 

Page 93



 
 
November 2023 

 
 
December 2023 

 
 
January 2024 

Page 94



 
 
February 2024 

 
 
March 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 95



April 2024 

 

 

Page 96



 

APPENDIX 2 

Car park maps 

 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



Mud and Sand

Mud and Sand

Mean Low Water

MLW

The Nicholas

Ball Boathouse

ESS

ETL

BR
IDGE ROAD

Countess Wear Bridge

FB

66

Sluice

60a

1:1,250

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000819343

¯

Bridge Road Car Park
Scale
Date: May 2024

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



Grandstand

Skatepark

Running Track

SUM MERWAY

ORW
ELL GARTH

PRIESTLEY AVENUE

The Seasons

Pavilion

38

40

36

16

18

1413

21

41

37

51

43

42

48

20

15

39

12

29

33

19

51a

Post

MP 0.5

L Twrs

L Twrs

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

1 to 6

Mark Twain  Ho use

53

LB

2

8

1

2

9

7

Sports Pavilion

1

BERNADETTE C LOSE

1:1,250

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000819343

¯

ISCA Arena Car park Scale
Date: May 2024

P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Centre

Civic

STREET

PARIS

PH

Ma
no

r

Exeter

Bus Station

(Leisure Or Sports Centre)

St Sidwell's Point

FB

House

BUDE STREET

CHEEKE STREET

BAMPFYLDE STREET

SIDWELL S
TREET

The Mount

Car  Park

Car  Park

Manor  Court

Sidwell

Mul ti  C ar  Pk

LB

LB

15

28

16

24

32

48

18

29

12

ESS

TCB

ESS

El

Sub

181

31d

173

31a

158

179

178

TCBs

180

161

164

160

177

183

31e

31d

188

172

166

171

162

168

163

167

182

165

Sta

Posts

Car Park

Shelter

Shelter

El Sub Sta

Shelters

El 
Su

b S
ta

184 to 1
87

Stat ion

19 to 23

13 to 15

Cycle H ire

Mult istorey

Mult istorey C ar Park

The B
a rn

Ce ntral Living

Berkeley DIX'S FIELD

The Depot

STOVER COURT

160

United Reformed

1:1,250

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000819343

¯

Old Bus Station Site
Scale
Date: May 2024

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Sinks

Issues

Issues

OLD

HU
MM

IN
GB

IR
D 

CL
OS

E

PINN LANE

PINN LANE

Cornerways

Ashley H ouse

Gas Meter House

Fairmead Court

Level Crossing

Blackall Lodge

Brookfield

Brookfield

Pinhoe (Station)

LittleMS

26

28

10

35

33

13

26

17

27

46

43

44

15

14

30

21

33

18

16

16

32

19

34

32

15

12

28

11

11

OAKLEY CLOSE

OA
KL

EY
 C

LO
SE

OAKLEY CLOSE

MP 0.5

Surgery

Hall

Car Park

Play Area

Shelter

El Sub Sta

Health Centre

Ne emb ag h

Ch urch

Pin ho e

Co ttag e
Ch estnu t

Un ite d Ref orme d

Bro ok Cott age

Oakleigh  Co tta ge

Jubilee Club

Pinhoe

5

6

3

1

8

1

1

1

7

1

7

2

1

5

3

7

8

STAT ION ROAD

Pla ymo or

Ho use

1:1,250

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000819343

¯

Pinhoe Station Car Park
Scale
Date: May 2024

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



Exeter St Thomas

Station

The Exebridge Centre

House

BEAUFORT ROAD

BEAUFORT ROAD

ALPHINGTON STREET

SH
OO

TI
NG

 M
AR

SH
 S

TI
LE

Court

Ham
pden Place

Hom eclyst
Apar tm ents

Hazelgrove

Ashmore Court

Sy
dn

ey
 P

lac
e

Beaufor t
Wel l-Park H ouse

Riverside

Leisure Centre

Hove Vil las

SL

51

35

46

9a

40

63

54

29

59

15

63

65

58

23

13

59

52

22

18

26

26

45

32

14

20

26

27

18

57

47

11

11

11

El

El

to

Mas t

Post

Depot

Church

Posts

Posts

Pos
ts

MP 195.0

Sub Sta

Sub Sta

Rising

Shelter

Shelter

Shelter

El Sub Sta

Bollard

1a to 1d

(Telecommunication)

1 to 33

1 to 16

1 to
 6

Line of Posts

Ho use

Ho use

Morwenn a

Re dvers

Gle ncoe

Th e Have n

Wylie

Trevon e

Ashdo wn  Lo dge

Ro se ba nk House

Avond ale

He ngrove  Ho use

Th e Osp re y

Bro ad Lea

Pear M ain

Old la nd s

Ch urch  Pa th

Plym leigh

Beech cro ft

Da rley Dale

3

1

2

1

3

4

5

1

2

4

7

6

1

1

5

3

9

7

1

1

33

3

6

9

6

3 1

3

1a to 1d

1 to 33

1 to 16

Ch urch  Pa th

7

Nurs ing H om e

SCH OOL ROAD

ROADAdelaide

Gas Gov

1:1,250

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000819343

¯

Riverside Leisure Centre Car Park
Scale
Date: May 2024

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



Day Nursery
Sports Court

LANE

CLOSE

BURNTHOUSEBUR NTHOUSE LAN E

BUR NTHOUSE LAN E

Church

Wonford

SILVER BIRCH

Centre

Methodist

Wonford Sports

Phoenix C ourt

22

17

15

10

21

32

18

12

99

28

24

19

41

37

39

El

107

146

123

166

131

168

129

164

124

141

154

144

MAGNOLIA AVENUE

Centre

Sub Sta

Surgery Health

Shelter

Shelter

El Sub Sta

21 to 28

35 to 46

1 to
 6

Wonf ord Com mu nity

Pre schoo l

and  Le arning Ce ntre

Lud we ll Valley

5

8

4

1

1:1,250

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000819343

¯

Wonford Sports Center Car Park
Scale
Date: May 2024

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Equality Impact Assessment: Parking Tariffs 2023 
 
The Equality Act 2010 includes a general duty which requires public authorities, in the exercise of their functions, to have due regard to the 
need to: 
 

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act.  

• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected characteristic and people who do not share it. 

• Foster good relations between people who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not 
 
In order to comply with the general duty authorities must assess the impact on equality of decisions, policies and practices.  These duties do 
not prevent the authority from reducing services where necessary, but they offer a way of developing proposals that consider the impacts on all 
members of the community. 
 
Authorities which fail to carry out equality impact assessments risk making poor and unfair decisions which may discriminate against particular 
groups and worsen inequality.  
 

Committee name and 
date: 

 

Report Title 
 

Decisions being 
recommended:  

 

People with protected 
characteristics potentially 
impacted by the decisions 
to be made:  
 

Executive 
4 June 2024 

Parking Tariffs 2024 Increase car parking charges at 
all car parks by 5%; 
 
Reduce car parking charges on a 
Sunday by 25%; 
 
Re-introduce 1hr parking for city 

Race & Ethnicity: 
Changes proposed may have an 
impact on this particular protected 
characteristic, some car parks 
would be chargeable and 
enforceable. 
 

P
age 111



Committee name and 
date: 

 

Report Title 
 

Decisions being 
recommended:  

 

People with protected 
characteristics potentially 
impacted by the decisions 
to be made:  
 

centre car parks located in Zone 
2; 
 
Amend the opening and closing 
hours at the John Lewis car park 
to 8.00am - midnight; 
 
Add the following new car parks 
to the Parking Places Order in 
accordance with the plans at 
Appendix 2: 
A: Central Zone  
Paris Street Car Park (Old Bus 
Station site) 
B: Zone 3 
Pinhoe Railway Station Car Park; 
Bridge Road Car Park; 
Riverside Leisure Centre; 
Wonford Sports Centre. 
 
To consult with nearby residents 
on a proposal to introduce 
residential car parking after 
6.00pm at Belmont Road Car 
Park ; 
 
Increase the cost of seasonal, 
residential and business parking 
permits as set out in this report: 
 

Region & Belief: 
Changes proposed may impact 
those who attend religious 
services across the city, they may 
have to pay to park in a nearby car 
park. 
 
Age: 
Changes proposed may impact 
on this particular protected 
characteristic.  The cost to buy a 
parking permit may have a 
negative impact on those working 
in the city centre, including those 
working in entry-level positions or 
are retired may not be able to 
afford to park in the city. 
 
Pregnancy: 
Changes proposed may impact 
this protected characteristic if a 
pregnancy, maternity or baby club 
is located close to a car park that 
is proposed to become 
chargeable. 

P
age 112



Committee name and 
date: 

 

Report Title 
 

Decisions being 
recommended:  

 

People with protected 
characteristics potentially 
impacted by the decisions 
to be made:  
 

£75,000 of the income achieved 
from Car Parks to be set aside 
for maintenance, improvements 
and carbon reduction measures 
to city centre car parks. 

Factors to consider in the assessment:  For each of the groups below, an assessment has been made on whether the proposed 
decision will have a positive, negative or neutral impact. This is must be noted in the table below alongside brief details of why this 
conclusion has been reached and notes of any mitigation proposed. Where the impact is negative, a high, medium or low 
assessment is given. The assessment rates the impact of the policy based on the current situation (i.e. disregarding any actions 
planned to be carried out in future). 

 

High impact – a significant potential impact, risk of exposure, history of complaints, no mitigating measures in place etc. 
Medium impact –some potential impact exists, some mitigating measures are in place, poor evidence 
Low impact – almost no relevancy to the process, e.g. an area that is very much legislation led and where the Council has very 
little discretion 

 

Protected characteristic/ area of 
interest 

Positive 
or 
Negative 
Impact 

High, 
Medium or 
Low 
Impact 

Reason 

Race and ethnicity (including 
Gypsies and Travellers; migrant 
workers; asylum seekers). 

N/A Low Changes proposed may have an impact on this particular protected 
characteristic, some car parks would be chargeable and enforceable.  

Disability: as defined by the Equality 
Act – a person has a disability if they 
have a physical or mental impairment 
that has a substantial and long-term 
adverse impact on their ability to carry 
out normal day-to-day activities. 

N/A Low Changes proposed does not have an impact on this particular protected 
characteristic.  

P
age 113



Protected characteristic/ area of 
interest 

Positive 
or 
Negative 
Impact 

High, 
Medium or 
Low 
Impact 

Reason 

Sex/Gender N/A Low Changes proposed does not have an impact on this particular protected 
characteristic.  

Gender reassignment N/A Low Changes proposed does not have an impact on this particular protected 
characteristic.  

Religion and belief (includes no 
belief, some philosophical beliefs such 
as Buddhism and sects within 
religions). 

N/A Low Changes proposed may impact those who attend religious services 
across the city, they may have to pay to park in a nearby car park. 

Sexual orientation (including 
heterosexual, lesbian, gay, bisexual). 

N/A Low Changes proposed does not have an impact on this particular protected 
characteristic. 

Age (children and young people aged 
0-24; adults aged 25-50; younger 
older people aged 51-75/80; older 
people 81+; frail older people; people 
living with age related conditions. The 
age categories are for illustration only 
as overriding consideration should be 
given to needs). 

Negative Medium Changes proposed may impact on this particular protected 
characteristic.  The cost to buy a parking permit may have a negative 
impact on those working in the city centre, including those working in 
entry-level positions or are retired may not be able to afford to park in 
the city. 

Pregnancy and maternity including 
new and breast feeding mothers 

N/A Low Changes proposed may impact this protected characteristic if a 
pregnancy, maternity or baby club is located close to a car park that is 
proposed to become chargeable. 

Marriage and civil partnership 
status 

N/A Low Changes proposed does not have an impact on this particular protected 
characteristic. 

 
Actions identified that will mitigate any negative impacts and/or promote inclusion 
 
Clearly indicate with signage which car parks are now chargeable and enforceable.  
 
Work with particular sectors and businesses located within the city centre to highlight Seasonal Parking Permits to businesses and employees, 
that there is a more affordable option, rather than buying a daily parking ticket. 
 

P
age 114



When updating notice boards within car parks, highlight what parking fees pay for across the City Council. 
 

Officer:  Victoria Hatfield 

Date: 8 May 2024 

P
age 115



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO EXECUTIVE 
Date of Meeting: 4th June 2024 

Report of: Director Finance 

Title: King George V Playing Fields 

Is this a Key Decision?  

No 

Is this an Executive or Council Function? 

Executive  

1. What is the report about? 

1.1 The report proposes the transfer by lease of the whole of the King George V Playing 

Fields, including the changing rooms, to the Exeter City Community Trust but with 

continued use by the community. 

2. Recommendation:  

2.1 That the Council enter into an agreement for lease dictating terms for the eventual 

grant a lease of the King George V Playing Fields to the Exeter City Community Trust 

(ECCT) in accordance with the broad proposals set out in this report but with negotiation 

and agreement of detailed terms to be delegated to the City Surveyor in consultation with 

the Leader of the Council.  

3. Reasons for the recommendation: 

3.1 ECCT have been developing a scheme of sport, recreational and community facilities 

to develop an improved proposition for the Playing Fields in consultation with the Council. 

They have identified sources of funding to start to deliver these facilities on the basis that 

they have been able to secure a property position satisfactory to the funding bodies. It 

has been determined that a leasehold interest along the lines set out in this report would 

satisfy this requirement. It is felt that, in the current financial circumstances of the Council, 

that this would be the best way to bring forward much-needed investment in these 

facilities in line with the aspirations of the Corporate Plan. 

4. What are the resource implications including non financial resources 

4.1 The proposal has the potential to reduce operational costs over time, although at the 

outset there will be some ongoing costs incurred by the Council that we would look to 

recover from ECCT through the lease agreement. There are likely to be significant 

ongoing savings from ECCT becoming responsible for building and site maintenance that 

will outweigh lost booking fee income. 

The City will benefit from the provision of the new sport, leisure and community facilities 

at no capital cost which substantively outweighs concerns regarding best consideration in 

the property transaction. 

Page 117

Agenda Item 11



There is an income stream generated from the garage premises on Bridge Road that is 

currently dedicated to the upkeep of the playing fields. This can either be transferred to 

ECCT (with an appropriate clawback mechanism in the lease) or allocated to another site 

(subject to Fields In Trust consent). 

5. Section 151 Officer comments: 

5.1 Whilst there is a small loss of income from booking fees (around £5,000) there is an 

opportunity to attract significant external funding to develop the playing fields.  This is 

investment that it is unlikely the Council could afford to make.  Whilst there are unlikely to 

be savings, the loss of income is small. 

6. What are the legal aspects? 

6.1 The proposal will require the Council to comply with section 123 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 (‘the Act’). 

Section 123 (1) and (2) state that a principal council may dispose of land held by them in 

any manner they wish subject to obtaining the best consideration that can reasonably be 

achieved unless the consent of the Secretary of State is obtained.  

Section 123 (2A) of the Act states that a principal council may not dispose of any land 

consisting or forming part of an open space unless they cause notice of their intention to 

do so, specifying the land in question, to be advertised in two consecutive weeks in a 

newspaper circulating in the area in which the land is situated, and consider any 

objections to the proposed disposal which may be made to them. 

It is noted that in addition to compliance with the obligations specified above any disposal 

of the playing fields at this site will require the consent of Fields in Trust as the land is 

subject to a trust.  

7. Monitoring Officer’s comments: 

7.1 Members attention is drawn to the detailed legal provisions that apply and must be 

observed as set out in paragraph 6 above. 

8. Report details: 

8.1 The proposed Heads of Terms for the agreement for lease and lease are as follows: 

ECCT will be obliged to provide the Council with a substantive business plan setting out 

funding for the construction of the first phase and subsequent operational management 

proposals. They would also be obliged to secure planning consent for the initial scheme 

of development. The Council is required to seek the consent of Fields In Trust for the 

proposal and the lease grant. Officers are in discussion with the Trust on this. On 

satisfaction of the conditions in the agreement for lease a lease would be granted for the 

whole playing fields site for a term of 50 years. ECCT would be responsible for the 

maintenance of the whole site. The land could only be used for sports, recreational and 

community activities (together with ancillary use). ECCT will fund and deliver the initial 

phase of improvements to be agreed with the Council and would look to secure further 

funding to bring forward further phases of investment during the lease term. A local forum 

would be established to oversee the ongoing public use of the playing fields and to 

Page 118



ensure fair access to pitches and other facilities. The makeup of the forum would include 

representatives from the Council and local sports clubs. 

The proposed concept scheme is as set out in the attached brochure. 

Background of the Playing Fields 

Protected by Fields In Trust in 1948, a site of c. 40 acres of recreational green and open 

space. It is identified as a priority within the Exeter City Council Playing Pitch Strategy 

(adopted January 2022). Central FC took residence in 2010/11, and pitch provision has 

changed over the years with no formal stipulation in place. However, when it first started 

there were only 12 pitches total. The current facility mix is: 

• Wide range of formally marked football pitches (7x adult pitches, 4x Intermediates, 2x 

Mini’s, 2x mini mini’s) 

• Changing Room Building (14 changing rooms, storage, and showers) 

• 2 x Play Areas (One fully inclusive) * 

• 2 x Tennis Courts 

• 1 x Artificial Grass Cricket Wicket 

• Car Park  

The site is very popular for informal recreation and dog walking 

*The Council has recently had to close the KGV play area due to the collapse of the 

Countess Wear Road retaining wall and decline in equipment condition. The extension to 

the inclusive play area to the north of the field will increase the onsite provision so that the 

site, alongside Southbrook Road, better meets Fields in Trust play area standards west of 

Bridge Road. First opened in 2008 the inclusive play area was named as the 6th most 

impressive accessible and inclusive playground in the world. ECC, and Mencap put 

funding into redeveloping the site in 2020. However, whilst this went someway to 

managing the equipment life, it did not extend to developing the site in respect of losing 

the southern play area. Development will both meet play standards and provide more 

accessible provision as per ECC standard play protocols. 

Summary of proposed improvement programme 

ECCT are undertaking feasibility, business case and pre-planning work to deliver a 

transformational community sports hub development at King George V Playing Fields. 

This will include: 

• Improvements to 13 grass pitches catering for all adult, junior and mini football 

• Refurbishment to existing two-storey pavilion to provide community 

engagement and space to facilitate the four pillars of delivery for ECCT (Participation, 

Education, Wellbeing, and Inclusion). 

• Single-storey ground floor extension (with option to develop second storey 

• extension with lift and staircase). 

• 3G full size floodlit pitch (100 x 64m). 

• 4 x 36 seat covered stands with foundations and lighting. 

• Building services infrastructure upgrades. 

• 2 x fenced Play Zones (20 x 30m). 

• Improve grass condition to four full size pitches. 

Page 119



• Approx. 375m of bi-direction cycle paths (4mw). 

• Sports Hall - Covered tensile structure with supporting facilities 

• (2,960 sq. m). 

• 25 new car park spaces (upper and lower). 

Whilst retaining the existing playing fields, inclusive play park and recreational / dog 

walking culture on site. 

This would deliver the first community based 3G in the city as a priority within the Playing 

Pitch Strategy, which identified a shortfall of 3 community 3G pitches in the city. 

ECCT are working alongside Exeter City Council, The Football Foundation, Devon FA, 

and other partners to deliver: 

• Ongoing community engagement and consultation 

• Technical Support to achieve planning and cost certainty 

• Programming of Use 

• Business Planning 

• External funding opportunities 

• Funding application to The Football Foundation 

Outcomes – benefits city-wide and to the Council 

• Improved engagement and sense of ownership with community 

•  Deliver a new community space to provide greater connectivity and social outcomes 

for local residents 

• Reduction in inequalities to access and participation with a focus on: 

o Lower socio-economic groups 

o Women and Girls 

o Culturally Diverse Communities 

o People with disabilities 

• Improved physical and mental wellbeing in priority area of the city 

• Delivers on priority of ECC Playing Fields Strategy 

• Strengthening partnership with existing locally trusted anchor organisations delivering 

health and wellbeing benefits across the city 

• Utilising the skills and experience of ECCT charity to bring in investment and 

resource to meet the city ‘Healthy and Active’ corporate priority 

• Lever in external investment from Football Foundation, Devon FA 

• Bring in additional non-football partners, investment, and improvements (e.g., play 

areas, tennis) 

A model of delivery to save ECC revenue costs (maintenance, grounds repair, facilities 

repair) within Parks and Open Spaces and Corporate Property Services 

9. How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 

9.1 The proposal contributes significantly to the objectives for a Healthy and Active City 

and to Build Great Neighbourhoods and Communities. It also delivers the objectives of 

the Playing Fields Strategy in enhancing recreational facilities in this area. 

Page 120



10. What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 

10.1 The main risks are the ECCT do not secure sufficient funding to deliver the 

investment. However, in this case, it would be unlikely to satisfy the pre-conditions in the 

agreement for lease and the land would then remain in Council management. 

It is possible that ECCT do not maintain the area to the standard anticipated or that 

community use is not available as conveniently or as affordably as anticipated. This risk 

can be mitigated by having the joint local forum to advise on public use/ hiring of facilities 

11. Equality Act 2010 (The Act)  

11.1 Under the Act’s Public Sector Equalities Duty, decision makers are required to 

consider the need to: 

• eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other prohibited conduct; 

• advance equality by encouraging participation, removing disadvantage, taking 

account of disabilities and meeting people’s needs; and 

• foster good relations between people by tackling prejudice and promoting 

understanding. 

11.2 In order to comply with the general duty authorities must assess the impact on 

equality of decisions, policies, and practices. These duties do not prevent the authority 

from reducing services where necessary, but they offer a way of developing proposals 

that consider the impacts on all members of the community. 

11.3 In making decisions the authority must take into account the potential impact of that 

decision in relation to age, disability, race/ethnicity (includes Gypsies and Travellers), sex 

and gender, gender identity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, pregnant women and 

new and breastfeeding mothers, marriage, and civil partnership status in coming to a 

decision. 

11.4 In recommending this proposal no potential impact has been identified on people 

with protected characteristics as determined by the Act, save for the potential for 

improved sporting facilities for the city as a whole. 

12. Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications: 

12.1 No direct carbon/environmental impacts arising from the recommendations. 

13. Are there any other options? 

13.1 The alternative would be to retain direct management of the playing fields but this 

would forego the possibility of delivering enhanced facilities. 

 

Director Finance, Dave Hodgson 

Author: Michael Carson – City Surveyor 

 

Page 121



Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 

Background papers used in compiling this report:- 

None 

Contact for enquires:  
Democratic Services (Committees) 
Room 4.36 
01392 265275 
 

Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



 
 

Equality Impact Assessment: KING GEORGE V PLAYING FIELDS 
 
The Equality Act 2010 includes a general duty which requires public authorities, in the exercise of their functions, to have due regard to the 
need to: 
 

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act.  

• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected characteristic and people who do not share it. 

• Foster good relations between people who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not 
 
In order to comply with the general duty authorities must assess the impact on equality of decisions, policies and practices.  These duties do 
not prevent the authority from reducing services where necessary, but they offer a way of developing proposals that consider the impacts on all 
members of the community. 
 
Authorities which fail to carry out equality impact assessments risk making poor and unfair decisions which may discriminate against particular 
groups and worsen inequality.  
 

Committee name and 
date: 

 

Report Title 
 

Decisions being 
recommended:  

 

People with protected 
characteristics potentially 
impacted by the decisions 
to be made:  
 

Executive 4 June 2024 
 

King George V Playing Fields Grant of agreement for lease and 
lease 

None identified 

Factors to consider in the assessment:  For each of the groups below, an assessment has been made on whether the proposed 
decision will have a positive, negative or neutral impact. This is must be noted in the table below alongside brief details of why this 
conclusion has been reached and notes of any mitigation proposed. Where the impact is negative, a high, medium or low 
assessment is given. The assessment rates the impact of the policy based on the current situation (i.e. disregarding any actions 
planned to be carried out in future). 

P
age 131



 

High impact – a significant potential impact, risk of exposure, history of complaints, no mitigating measures in place etc. 
Medium impact –some potential impact exists, some mitigating measures are in place, poor evidence 
Low impact – almost no relevancy to the process, e.g. an area that is very much legislation led and where the Council has very 
little discretion 

 

Protected characteristic/ area of 
interest 

Positive 
or 
Negative 
Impact 

High, 
Medium or 
Low 
Impact 

Reason 

Race and ethnicity (including 
Gypsies and Travellers; migrant 
workers; asylum seekers). 

   

Disability: as defined by the Equality 
Act – a person has a disability if they 
have a physical or mental impairment 
that has a substantial and long-term 
adverse impact on their ability to carry 
out normal day-to-day activities. 

   

Sex/Gender    

Gender reassignment    

Religion and belief (includes no 
belief, some philosophical beliefs such 
as Buddhism and sects within 
religions). 

   

Sexual orientation (including 
heterosexual, lesbian, gay, bisexual). 

   

Age (children and young people aged 
0-24; adults aged 25-50; younger 
older people aged 51-75/80; older 
people 81+; frail older people; people 
living with age related conditions. The 
age categories are for illustration only 
as overriding consideration should be 
given to needs). 

   

P
age 132



Protected characteristic/ area of 
interest 

Positive 
or 
Negative 
Impact 

High, 
Medium or 
Low 
Impact 

Reason 

Pregnancy and maternity including 
new and breast feeding mothers 

   

Marriage and civil partnership 
status 

   

 
Actions identified that will mitigate any negative impacts and/or promote inclusion 
 
 

Officer: City Surveyor 

Date: 09.05.24 

P
age 133



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 135

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 139

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 141

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Agenda

	2 Minutes
	Executive
	Tuesday 9 April 2024
	Present:
	Also present:
	Councillor Moore (as an opposition group Leader); and
	Councillor M. Mitchell (as an opposition group Leader).
	Apologies:
	Also present:



	6 Local Authority Housing Fund (LAHF) Round 3 Funding
	Appendix 1 - LAHF3 MOU
	Appendix 2 - LAHF ROUND 3 - Cost Breakdowns
	EQIA Local Authority Housing Fund Round 3

	7 Review of the Corporate Risk Register
	Corporate Risk Register - May 2024 - DRAFT

	8 Members’ Allowances and Expenses Paid 2023/24
	Appendix A - 23-24 Councillors

	9 Exeter Port Authority: The role of the Duty Holder
	10 Parking Tariffs 2024
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 2 - Bridge Road Car Park
	Appendix 2 - ISCA Arena Parking
	Appendix 2 - Old Bus Station Site
	Appendix 2 - Pinhoe Station Car Park
	Appendix 2 - Rivierside Leisure Centre Car Park
	Appendix 2 - Wonford Sports Centre Car Park
	EQIA - 2024 Parking Tariff FINAL

	11 King George V Playing Fields
	Appendix - KGV JPH
	EQIA -KGV

	12 Land at Pendragon Road
	Pendragon Road POS and Access Plans 13-12-2023 REV C
	EQIA -  Pendragon Road




